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. Financial Highlights

e HZE12A31HLEE
Results Year ended 31 December
20194 L)
2019 Change
AREFTT
RMB’000
WA Revenue 134,757 (9.8)%
e (B8|) FIHE Operating (loss)/profit 6,855  (106.8)%
FrigHif X Income tax expense (2,980)  (84.7)%
F AT E Profit for the year 8,079 (70.1)%
FRNARR R R, Earnings per share attributable

FEREN (LK
ARETIIR)

— ERREE

BA AR

Financial position

to shareholders of the Company
for the year (expressed in RMB
per share)

— Basic and diluted 0.06 (66.7)%

®12A318
As at 31 December

20194 #E)
2019 Change
ARBTTT
RMB’000
MEE Total assets 745,611 0.3%
MEBEEFRE Net current assets 473,203 1.8%
MEERITBERE Total assets less current liabilities 631,281 0.4%
waE Total liabilities 114,330 (0.1)%
PR Total equity 631,281 0.4%
7R 6 ®12A318
Financial statistics As at 31 December
20194
2019
Bt X Current ratio’ 5.1
B & xR Gearing ratio? —
FERAEA&(RA)? Inventory turnover days (days)? 239.7
BorlWzERAERE () Trade receivables turnover days (days)* 531.7
BoRMNZIERAERAE(H)S Trade payables turnover days (days)® 55.1
1. MBI EEER R EERURBAR 1. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
2. BELEXEENBELBERAGEZ BRI 2. Gearing ratio = total borrowings/total equity x 100%
100%
3. FEABRSHEERTEARBRAFANRA - H 3. Inventory turnover days = inventory balance/revenue for the year x 365 days
FeLA365 H
4. BH5RERBAEBBAENE HEBKIEL S 4. Trade receivables turnover days = trade receivables balance excluding bank
(TBRIBRITHARER) BRAFAWA - BIEEA365 acceptance notes/revenue for the year x 365 days
=
5. BS9RNARBAEASHEENE HEMNRBER 5. Trade payables turnover days = trade payables balance/revenue for the year x

BRAFE R A - BIELASE5H

365 days

4 EHEBRNENBROERAT
WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby

A] (Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited*) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or
“Sunlit”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

In 2020, the outbreak of the once-in-a-century novel coronavirus
pandemic (the “Pandemic”) dealt a heavy blow to the world
economy. In the face of the disastrous impact of the Pandemic
and the complex and challenging domestic and international
conditions, the global economy nosedived, international trade
friction intensified, downward pressure on the domestic economy
mounted, the manufacturing industry across China plummeted,
prices of steel and raw materials fluctuated, and development
encountered multiple difficulties and challenges. While striving to
prevent and control the Pandemic, the Group also ensured our
normal, orderly and stable production and operation, thereby
maintaining our stable market share in the industry.

In 2020, as numerous clients slowed down the construction
progress of their new facilities due to the Pandemic, the Group
had to delay the delivery, testing and acceptance of equipment
by our clients. Sales of the Group decreased by 9.8% as
compared with last year to approximately RMB121.6 million,
while net profit recorded by the Group’s operations for 2020
amounted to RMB2.42 million.

As the Group did not have any borrowings in recent years, its
gearing ratio continued to be low and cash flows remained
healthy. In view of severe market competitions, a sound financial
position may facilitate long-term and healthy development.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of RMBO0.05 per share (before
taxation).

In 2020, the Group went through implementation, operation and
evaluation and was eventually certified and obtained the
qualifications of the Integration of Industrialization and
Information Management System. Through the effective
application and constant improvement of the Integration of
Industrialization and Information Management System, the Group
has established new capacity in a digitalised environment.

—E-TEERE 5
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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PROSPECTS

2021 marks the beginning of the 14th Five-Year Plan. China is
at a crossroads now, changing its development model,
optimising its economic structure and shifting its growth engine.
The Company will accelerate the upgrade of our management
and product offerings and achieve a synergy effect to maintain
our leadership position in the industry. As tire is a key
component of an automobile, the tire manufacturing industry in
China witnessed an exponential growth in recent years. China is
now the biggest tire producer in the world and manufacturers in
China experienced production overload over the past few years.
On the other hand, the rebound of the automobile consumption
market and a surge in overseas orders also greatly stimulated
the demands for tires, facilitated market consolidation and
reaped economies of scale. As the consumption structure of
China upgrades, the tire consumption habits in China is
gradually shifting to high-performance and larger tires. The future
of the tire industry in China is bright. It is expected that
domestic demand for radial tire will continue to grow. Being an
upstream enterprise in the industry chain of the tire sector, the
Group will accurately capture development trends in the industry
and opportunities brought by the economic restructuring in
China. The Company will also look for development opportunities
and mitigate operating and investment risks with the aims of
securing healthy and sustainable business growth and
maintaining steady growth momentum of the Group. The Board
remains optimistic about the long-term prospects of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, steadfast
business partners, suppliers and customers for their support,
and to all our dedicated employees for their contributions to the
Group’s development.

Zhang Degang
Chairman of the Board
Jiangsu, China

26 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, the impact of the unforeseen novel coronavirus disease
pandemic (the “Pandemic”) spread from social aspects to
economic aspects and presented a major challenge to both
economies and businesses in China and across the world. It had
a profound impact on the development of both the Chinese and
world economies, reduced consumption and investment growth,
and materially increased the uncertainty as to whether goals and
missions can be achieved. Against this backdrop, the Group has
not only striven to prevent and control the Pandemic, but also
adjusted its operation strategies, strengthened its internal
management, controlled its operating costs, prevented risks and
reinforced its safety and environmental controls in a timely
manner so as to ensure smooth production and operation.

In the first half of the year, the Pandemic wreaked havoc on and
impacted the automobile industry to a significant extent.
Nevertheless, bolstered by the implementation of pandemic
control and favourable national policies, the growth of annual
automobile production and sales in China remained stable, albeit
with a slight decrease, in 2020. According to the data from the
China Association of Automobile Manufacturers (“CAAM”), the
production and sales of automobiles in 2020 amounted to
25.225 million vehicles and 25.311 million vehicles, respectively,
representing decreases of 2% and 1.9%, respectively, as
compared with the corresponding period last year.

Complicated market environment and industrial factors have, to
a certain extent, affected the Group’s performance for the Year.
The overall results of the Group for the Year showed a decline
as compared to that of 2019. Sales amounted to RMB121.6
million in the Year, representing a decrease of 9.8% as
compared to that of last year. Net profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 dropped to RMB2.4 million,
mainly due to the increase of foreign exchange losses.

—E-TEERE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B %5 E1§E FINANCIAL REVIEW
[N Revenue
HE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
EHEgE ARETT %
Unit(s) sold RMB’000 %
EEEAMALELS  Brass electroplating wire production lines 5 44111 32.7
HAhEER Other production lines 1 385 0.3
i Standalone machines 575 68,507 50.8
HuBERE - Other mould repairing equipment,
TR R B component parts and accessories i FAN/A 18,548 13.8
HelA Rental income T AN/A 2,973 2.2
REBEBBA Agent business income T EAN/A 233 0.2

FRCBEMOKRABH2019FHDARE
134,800,000 & 2> 43 A R # 13,200,000
7L (36 #99.8%) & #) A K #121,600,000
Lo WARDEERBR THITERFEM
BIRHASEERONMBSHE LT - UK
AN B F 2020 F 18 R 15 1 I B XA K08l
EE e

MEEBRBEERAH0I9FHARE
44,100,000 T3 MNA13.5% 2= 49 A R #&
50,100,0007C ° 20194 20204 [Z -
ESEEEENMGEERERRRIK -
WA INEZRNE TSI A EERLE
BRASEE TR - EHREBEFATR -

B EAR - Efth A EZR2020F I 8 =
A SHE A - B2019F MR AR A AR
400,0007T °

B TN BEEEWAR22019FLHA
R 68,500,0007C & 2 #924.2% = 49 AR
#51,900,0007T * Jh N EHEEE T AT
ﬁ o

8 EHEBRNENBROERAT

134,757 100.0

During the vyear, our revenue decreased by approximately
RMB13.2 million or approximately 9.8% to approximately
RMB121.6 million when compared with the revenue of
approximately RMB134.8 million in 2019. The decrease is mainly
due to a more intense competition in the downstream industry
and drop in market demand for products of the Group, and the
Group delayed the delivery and testing of equipment as a result
of the outbreak of the Pandemic in 2020.

Brass electroplating wire production lines. During the Year,
revenue from sales of brass electroplating wire production lines
increased by approximately 13.5% to approximately RMB50.1
million when compared with the revenue of approximately
RMB44.1 million in 2019. During the year of 2019 and 2020, 5
sets of brass electroplating wire production lines were accepted
by the customers. The increase was mainly due to the
difference in unit price, which is caused by different structure
and model of the production lines accepted.

Other production lines. No revenue from the sale of other
production lines was generated in 2020. It decreased RMBO0.4
million compared to that of 2019.

Standalone machines. Revenue from sales of standalone
machines decreased by approximately 24.2% to approximately
RMB51.9 million during the Year, when compared with the
revenue of approximately RMB68.5 million in 2019. The
decrease was due to the drop in sales quantity of standalone
machines.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other mould repairing equipment, component parts and
accessories. Revenue from sales of other mould repairing
equipment, component parts and accessories decreased by
approximately 36.1% to approximately RMB11.9 million during
the Year, when compared with the revenue of approximately
RMB18.5 million in 2019. The decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in prices of other component parts and accessories to
customers.

Rental income. Revenue from rental income arose from the
Group’s investment properties, which were rented to third
parties in 2019 and 2020. As more parts of buildings were
rented out in 2020, the rental income increased to RMB4.7
million by 57.9% comparing to that of RMB3.0 million in 2019.

Agent business income. There is also an increase in revenue
from agent business from RMBO0.2 million in 2019 to RMBS3.1
million in 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Year, our gross profit decreased by approximately
1.0% to approximately RMB30.3 million when compared with
RMB30.6 million in 2019. Our overall gross profit margin
increased from approximately 22.7% in 2019 to approximately
24.9% in 2020, mainly due to the increase in agent business
income.

Other income

During the Year, our other income decreased by approximately
37.9% to approximately RMB0.8 million when compared with
RMB1.2 million in 2019. The decrease was primarily due to less
value-added tax refunds and government subsidies received.

Selling expenses

During the Year, our selling expenses decreased by
approximately 53.2% to approximately RMB2.2 million when
compared with RMB4.8 million in 2019. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in employee benefit expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased from approximately
RMB35.9 million in 2019 to approximately RMB25.5 million in
2020. This is primarily due to the decrease in allowance for
impairment of properties held for sale.

—E-TEERE 9
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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500,0007T ' M2019F M FT 18 i F 2 Bl 49
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10 EHERNENBROBRATF

Net reversal of impairment losses on financial assets

Our net reversal of impairment losses on financial assets
decreased from approximately RMB10.5 million in 2019 to
approximately RMBO0.9 million in 2020, primarily due to the
collection of long-aging trade receivables.

Other (losses)/gains — net

The Group recorded net other losses of approximately RMB4.6
million in 2020, compared with the net other gains of
approximately RMB5.3 million in 2019. Net other losses mainly
included foreign exchange losses and fair value gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The increase in net
other losses in 2020 is mainly due to foreign exchange losses.

Finance income

The Group recorded finance income of approximately RMB3.3
million in 2020, compared with finance income of approximately
RMB4.2 million in 2019. The decrease in finance income was
mainly due to decrease of interest income from US dollar
deposits.

Income tax expense

During the Year, the Group recorded income tax expense of
approximately RMBO0.5 million, compared with the income tax
expense of approximately RMB3.0 million in 2019. The Group
recognised the deferred income tax assets only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Trade receivables

Our gross trade receivables increased by approximately 14.8%
from approximately RMB217.2 million as at 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB249.3 million as at 31 December 2020.
The increase was primarily due to the trade receivables
amounted to RMB28.1 million generated from agent business.
Meanwhile, the allowance for trade receivables decreased from
approximately RMB50.4 million at the end of 2019 to
approximately RMB49.4 million at the end of 2020.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Inventories

Our inventories increased by approximately 28.3% from
approximately RMB88.5 million at the end of 2019 to
approximately RMB113.5 million at the end of 2020. It is mainly
because of the increase in the unfinished sales contracts as at
31 December 2020 as compared with those as at
31 December 2019.

Trade and notes payables

Our trade and notes payables increased by approximately 4.6%
from approximately RMB61.6 million as at 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB64.4 million as at 31 December 2020. It is
primarily due to the increase in purchase volumes in the second
half of the year as compared with last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash position and fund available

As at 31 December 2020, the total cash and bank balances of
the Group were approximately RMB215.5 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB212.2 million), comprising cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB53.9 million
(81 December 2019: approximately RMB62.5 million), restricted
cash of approximately RMB48.4 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB24.3 million) and time deposits of
approximately RMB113.2 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB125.4 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio of the Group was
5.2 (31 December 2019: 5.1).

The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as total borrowings
divided by total equity) was zero (31 December 2019: zero).

The Group was in a strong net cash position as at
31 December 2019 and 2020. The Group has sufficient and
readily available finance resources for general working capital
requirement and foreseeable capital expenditure.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no borrowings
(81 December 2019: Nil).

—E-TEERE 11
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditures amounted to
approximately RMB3.8 million (2019: approximately RMB7.4
million) which was related to the purchase of machineries and
equipments of approximately RMB3.8 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the Year. The capital of the Group only comprises
ordinary shares.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in mainland China with most of the
Group’s transactions denominated and settled in RMB, except
that certain trade receivables and bank deposits are
denominated in US dollar (“USD”) which are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The Group has entered into forward
foreign exchange contracts in an aggregate value of
approximately US$2,773,000 to mitigate foreign exchange risk,
including the potential exchange loss due to the depreciation of
USD against RMB, during the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group will continued to monitored foreign exchange
changes to best preserve the Group’s cash value.

If the USD had appreciated/depreciated by 5% against the RMB
while all other variables had been held constant, the Group’s
net result for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have
been approximately RMB4,463,000 better/worse (2019:
RMB4,058,000), for various financial assets denominated in
USD.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Company’s H shares have been listed (the “Listing”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 11 November 2014 (the “Listing Date”).
The net proceeds from the Listing after the deduction of
underwriting commissions, fees and listing-related expenses
amounted to approximately HK$209.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB165.3 million) (the “Net Proceeds”).

With a view to improving efficiency in the use of the Company’s
temporary idle raised Net Proceeds, on the condition that the
construction of the committed projects and planned usage of the
proceeds for such construction will not be affected, the Board
has proposed to utilise part of the temporary idle raised Net
Proceeds to purchase wealth management products in order to
increase the capital revenue, improve the efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of the Company’s temporary idle raised
proceeds, which in turn shall further enhance the overall revenue
of the Company and pursue better investment return to the
Company and the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as a whole. For more details regarding the
change of use of Net Proceeds from the Listing, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2016 (the
“Announcement”).

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June
2020, the Board was authorised, within one year commencing
from the approval, to exercise the decision-making power
regarding purchase of wealth management products by utilising
temporary idle proceeds for not more than RMB35 million in
aggregate at any time. Since the authority granted to the Board
to purchase wealth management products with the temporary
idle proceeds will expire one year after such approval, a special
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to renew such authority. For details of
the grant of such authorities, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 29 April 2020.

—E-TEERE 13
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Together with the income to be generated from the wealth
management products, the Company will continue apply the Net
Proceeds from the Listing for the construction of the new
manufacturing facility located in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province of the
PRC (the “New Wuxi Facility”) and the new research &
development centre to be established in the New Wuxi Facility
(the “New Research & Development Centre”) and for other
purposes in accordance with the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”) and in the
Announcement.

TR ETEEESHEAMMNR The following table sets forth the status of use of proceeds from
the Listing:
HE020%
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Utilised Net Utilised during balance of Net  timeline for
Planned use of Proceeds up to the Year ended Proceeds up to unused net
Net Proceeds 31 December 31 December 31 December  proceeds from
from the Listing 2020 2020 2020 the Listing
(#4) (#4) (#4) (#4)
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
BEREBHZERIME  Funding the construction of the New Wuxi Facilty 163,000,000%7T 108,280,000 T 8,260,000 T 64,890,000 202524l
PLREES and the New Research & Development Centre  HKS$163.00 millon ~ HK$108.28 milion HK$8.26 million HKS64.89 milion by 2022
ERATHERERA Developing certain targeted research and 25,500,000 T 26,630,000 T 4,720,000 ¢ - -
development projects HK$25.50 milion ~ HK$26.63 million HK$4.72 million
fE—REELEERER-  Genera working capital and other general corporate 21,000,000 7 21,000,000 - - -
rERR purposes HK$21.00 milion ~ HK$21.00 milion
@5t Total: 200,500,000 155,910,000 12,980,000/ ¢ 64,890,000 T
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HK$209.50 milion  HK$155.91 milion ~ HK$12.98 milion  HKS64.89 million

The net proceeds allocated have been adjusted and recalculated
with reference to () the actual net proceeds from the Listing of
approximately HK$209.5 million after the deduction of
underwriting commissions, fees and listing-related expenses; and
(i) the percentage of use of proceeds allocated to each of the
purposes as disclosed in the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2020, the unutilised proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$64.89 million. Among the unutilised proceeds
of approximately HK$64.89 million, the unused proceeds,
including the net proceeds of HK$54.72 million and interest of
net proceeds of HK$10.17 million, were deposited in licensed
banks in the PRC.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2020, the Net Proceeds of HK$25.50 million
and interest of net proceeds of HK$1.13 million have been
utilised for developing certain targeted research and
development projects.

There has been a delay in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds on
the construction of New Wuxi Facility and the New Research
and Development Centre as there was a change in business
development strategies with the reasons set out in the
Announcement. However, the Company will utilise the unutilised
portion of the Net Proceeds according to the disclosure of the
Prospectus and the Announcement.

PROSPECTS

In 2021, China will continue to focus on its supply-side
structural reform. 2021 will present both challenges and
opportunities to the Group. In particular, tire manufacturers in
China will see opportunities as the performance of international
behemoths plummets amidst the Pandemic and countless
uncertainties in the global environment. With respect to market
segments, the passenger car market has maintained growth
since May 2020, while starting from July, the monthly sales
volume of new energy vehicles sustained a year-on-year surge,
which in turn lifted annual sales to over 1.3 million units for the
first time. After the downturn throughout the first 8 months of
2020, vehicle exports recorded historic highs for 2 consecutive
months in November and December 2020, and is expected to
record rebound with positive growth in 2021. This will drive the
demand for brass electroplating wire and, in turn, boost
investment in, and production of, related equipment. The Group
will seize such opportunities through its consistently stringent
management, cost control and lean production. It will closely
monitor market and industrial developments, step up its
technological investment, nurture technological management and
innovation talents, upgrade and improve product performance,
and help customers reduce costs, increase efficiency and
enhance competitiveness in order for the Group to maintain its
leadership position in the market. Also, with a sound financial
position, the Group is confident of achieving breakthroughs
when market opportunities arose and thus safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders.

—E-TEERE 15
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 138
full-time employees (31 December 2019: 146), including
administration, finance, internal audit, research and development,
technical application, quality control, manufacturing,
procurement, sales and marketing staff. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group’s total employee remuneration was
approximately RMB15.9 million (2019: approximately RMB18.9
million).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed regularly.
Subject to the Group’s profitability and the staff performance,
the Group may also provide a discretionary bonus to employees
as an incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary
goal of the remuneration policy with regard to the remuneration
packages of the Group’s executive Directors is to enable the
Group to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against corporate
objectives achieved.

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
remuneration policy and structure of all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Group places great emphasis on recruiting and training
quality personnel by providing orientation programmes to the
new employees and on-going internal training to the existing
employees to enhance their industry, technical and product
knowledge, their work ethics as well as their knowledge of
industry quality standards and work safety standards.
Furthermore, the Group encourages its employees to take
advanced courses and to obtain professional certifications.

The Group is confident that its employees will continue to
provide a solid foundation for the success of the Group and will
maintain a high standard of service to our customers.

The Group has not experienced any disruption of its normal
business operations due to labour disputes or significant
turnover of staff. The Directors consider that the Group has
maintained a very good relationship with its staff.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



HAREE
R2020F12A31H » XEEH B E(L A E
KR EE (2019F12A31H « #) -

EXKREA

GBABEEERBENER — SBUER
RNATRERS | —BARENEME
mih - FR - AEEHEREFERNKRE -

EXWBEBREE

>
HE

iy

FRAEEREREXLEHNBRR]

GEARRAELE -

BFEHEME

20184 - AEEBERHILRERET
2R FI) [ & P 3% 269 5% [F FIEE /Y 166 8T £
B ((ZEPDE])  FEEEMAREER
MERBEEEE D A& £/818,9209F 7
KK3,331.2F 5K - REBBEHEZSE
- At AEENR20185F5H29H
BERZEMENERTENERT AR
AEERAFELEWE -

FR - AEEZBREDHARKS,500,000
TTHE21REESA - MRS ELN 2020
F1I2A1EMNEESBENABARE
49,500,0007T ' GRS E R EEB.6% °

BRAWESHEMENR S

BAREMBEESIN  FA AEELE
BRABBRLENENRS -

EEE RSN

Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (31 December 2019: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save and except for the wealth management products as
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Discloseable Transaction
in relation to Wealth Management Deposit — Structured
Product” in this report, the Group had no significant investments
held during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, the Group had no acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

In 2018, the Group purchased 166 residential units of Tong Xing
Garden, No. 269 Guangxing Road, Kenli District, Dongying City,
Shandong Province, the PRC (the “Properties”), which carry
a total gross floor area of 18,920.9 square metres for the
residential units and 3,331.2 square metres for the ancillary
facilities. The Group has an intention to sell the Properties and,
accordingly, such rights are recognised as properties held for
sale upon the completion of the transfer of the title of the
Properties from the vendor to the Company on 29 May 2018.

During the Year, the Group sold 21 units of residential units at
the total consideration of approximately RMB8.5 million, the
carrying amount of the unsold units as at 31 December 2020 is
approximately RMB49.5 million, representing 6.6% of the total
assets of the Group.

TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION OR
DISPOSAL OF PROPERTIES

Save as disclosed in this report, during the Year, the Group had
no transaction in relation to acquisition or disposal of properties.

—E-TEERE 17
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CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the cash deposits in the amount of
approximately RMB48.4 million were pledged to banks as
security for notes payable and were secured for forward foreign
exchange contracts. As at 31 December 2019, the cash
deposits in the amount of approximately RMB24.3 million and
time deposits in the amount of RMB10.0 million were pledged to
banks as security for notes payable and letter of guarantee for
domestic sales. Save for that, the Group did not have any
charges on its assets as at 31 December 2020 or 31
December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDS

In the future, the Group will continue to implement its diversified
development strategy and proactively search for potential
investment opportunities.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus or elsewhere is this report,
the Group had no future plans for material investments and
expected source of funds as at 31 December 2020.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTIONS IN RELATION TO
SUBSCRIPTION OF WEALTH MANAGEMENT
PRODUCT — STRUCTURED DEPOSIT

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June
2020, a special resolution has been passed by the
Shareholders, under which, among other things, the Board was
authorised to exercise within one year thereof the investment
decision for purchasing wealth management products by utilising
temporarily unused portion of the net proceeds of the Company,
subject to the cap of RMB35 million.

On 21 July 2020, the Company subscribed for a wealth
management product of structured deposit issued by China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (“China Merchants Bank”) with an
aggregate amount of RMB24 million (the “Structured Deposit”).
The total RMB24 million Structured Deposit was financed by the
temporarily unused portion of the net proceeds raised from the
Listing. The Structured Product reached its maturity on 30
October 2020 and the Company received an income of
approximately RMB193,000 in addition to the return of the
principal of RMB24 million.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The subscription amounts are aggregated in accordance with
Rule 14.22 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). As one or more of the
applicable percentage ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules)
in relation to the subscription exceed 5% but are below 25%,
the subscription constitutes a discloseable transaction of the
Company and is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements, but is exempt from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements, under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

For details of the above transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 July 2020.

—E-TEERE
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Degang (3R#Hll), aged 48, is our executive
Director and the chairman of the Group since 24 July 2012. Mr.
Zhang Degang is one of the founders of the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the Group’s postulating business
development plans and overseeing our Group’s overall corporate
strategies. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee
and strategic committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang Degang is the
brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.

Mr. Zhang Degang obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer
science and technology (e-business) (F & HFEIE2 BT (B F5
7)) through distance learning from Nanjing University (F 5K
E) in March 2005. In January 2013, Mr. Zhang was accredited
by FEIAEZRTIHEBEI((EZE B IHBIEE (Chengjiang
Road Office of the Chengjiang Road Working Committee of the
Communist Party of China*) as the “BRE ®%XK” (Star
Entrepreneur®) for the year 2012. In April 2013, Mr. Zhang was

Medal*) by £ M4 T € (Wuxi City General Union®). Mr. Zhang
was awarded the #&#5 M & E)IRES (Labour Model of Wuxi*) in
May 2015.

From June 1990 to June 1994, Mr. Zhang Degang worked in jT
fedi 4B (Jiangyin Steel Wire Factory®); from June 1994 to
November 2003, Mr. Zhang worked in China Bekaert Steel Cord
Co., ltd. (FEEFRIFHELZBR A 7A]), where he gained
considerable experience in the steel wire industry. From October
2002 to April 2004, Mr. Zhang acted as the supervisor of L&
=AM T AR AR (Jiangyin Sanzhi Gongkong Company
Limited®) (“diangyin Sanzhi”), which was principally engaged in
the installation, modification, repair and maintenance of industrial
automatic control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was deregistered in
December 2015. From September 2005 to July 2012, Mr.
Zhang acted as the chairman, director and general manager of
TR BERF#M TREAER AR (Jiangyin Beite Machinery and
Engineering Company Limited*), which specialised in the sale
and manufacture of industrial automatic equipment. In order to
allow Mr. Zhang to focus on the business of the Group, /T E
B T2 B MR A A (Jiangyin Beite Machinery and Engineering
Company Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms.
Zhu Yingxuan) established #3858 N iE# W T2 B R A A
(Wuxi Sunlit Machinery & Engineering Company Limited*) (the
“Predecessor Company”) with Mr. Zhang Degiang. He has
been the director of IR = TiFE# M AR AR (Jiangyin
Sanzhi Gongkong Machinery Company Limited®) (the “Sanzhi
Gongkong”) since April 2009 and he acted as the general
manager of Sanzhi Gongkong from April 2009 to December
2011; he has also been the director and general manager
of JIEBHEEMERILABMR AR (Jiangsu Sunlit Equipment
Technology Company Limited®) (the “Jiangsu Sunlit”) since
August 2009; the general manager of 58K E{F R AR A
A] (Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Company Limited*) (the
“Haisheng Software”) since July 2011 and its director since
December 2012; and the director of 5 FiE B BB BR
A 8] (Wuxi Shangda Automation Technology Company Limited*)
(the “Wuxi Shangda”) since December 2011. Wuxi Shangda was
deregistered in April 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Degiang (5R{&58), aged 51, is our executive
Director and general manager. Mr. Zhang is also one of the
founders of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the day-
to-day operations, strategic development and management of
the Group’s business. Mr. Zhang Degiang is also a member of
the remuneration and appraisal committee and strategic
committee of the Board. Mr. Zhang Degiang is the brother of
Mr. Zhang Degang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.
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Mr. Zhang Degiang obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (& T 5% ##) from
Southeast University (BEFEAZ) in July 1991. In August 1998,
he was conferred by E#HH IREMPHETtEIIEB)EZE
@ (Wuxi City Engineer Technology Intermediate Qualification
Socialisation Evaluation Committee*) with the qualification of
engineer. In November 2013, he was granted the qualification
of senior engineer by IT#H A BB M TIERRBEERINE
WEFEEE<E (Jiangsu Wuxi Mechanical Engineering Senior
Professional Technique Qualification Evaluation Committee®). In
January 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was recognised by J& &
AR (Zhoutie Town People’s Government®) and A B &=
Z2FEEZEE (Zhoutie Town Committee of the Communist
Party of China*) as the “BRE K& (&) " (Star Factory Director
(Manager)*) for the year of 2010. He was also accredited as the
“EFRELNDESR” (Outstanding Non-public Entrepreneur®) for two
consecutive years of 2010 and 2011 by E#HH AR (Wuxi
People’s Government*) and Bl HEZE & THZ (Wuxi Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party of China*).

From August 1991 to October 1995, Mr. Zhang Degiang
worked in JBEMEEBEFRE(T A (Haying Enterprise Group
Company Limited*), where he gained experience in designing
machinery. From October 1995 to April 2006, Mr. Zhang
worked as the department head of the production and technical

Company Limited*), which was principally engaged in the sale
and manufacture of electronic products and components. From
April 2004 to November 2005, he acted as the supervisor of
Jiangyin Sanzhi, which was principally engaged in the installation,
modification, repair and maintenance of industrial automatic
control equipment. Jianyin Sanzhi was deregistered in December
2015.

In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degiang founded the Predecessor
Company with Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms. Zhu
Yingxuan).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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From March 2006 to March 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was the
director of the Predecessor Company. In March 2011, Mr.
Zhang Degiang took up the role as the general manager of the
Company, and he acted as the executive Director since July
2012. From April 2009 to December 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang
acted as the director of Sanzhi Gongkong and as its supervisor
since December 2011. He has also been acting as the
supervisor of Jiangsu Sunlit since August 2009; the supervisor of
Haisheng Software since July 2011; and the general manager of
Wuxi Shangda since December 2011, Wuxi Shangda was
deregistered in April 2016.

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. ZHANG Jinghua (5RE¥FEE), aged 58, is the non-executive
Director. Ms. Zhang is the sister of Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr.
Zhang Deqiang.

Ms. Zhang Jinghua graduated from high school in July 1978. In
February 2012 and February 2013, respectively, she was
recognised by RELEETETZ (Jiangyin Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party of China*) and ;T AR
BT (People’s Government of the Jiangyin City*) as the “B5 4
#&38” (outstanding general manager®).

From March 1979 to November 1991, Ms. Zhang Jinghua
worked as a teacher in JIf2 M ZZEH £ (Jiangyin City Yaosai
Secondary School*). From October 1991 to October 2002, she
worked in JTREHERE X EGR AR (Jiangyin Liantong Industrial
Company Limited®). Ms. Zhang obtained a qualification certificate
of speciality and technology in statistics (elementary level)
approved and issued by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC
(FhEE AR HFIE A ZEEB) and conferred by the National Bureau
of Statistics of the PRC (BIZR#5T ) in October 1998. From
October 2002 to November 2005, she acted as the director and
manager of Jiangyin Sanzhi. From March 2004 to November
2009, she acted as the director and general manager of T =
FT W AR AR (Jangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery
Company Limited*), which was principally engaged in the design,
sale and manufacture of industrial automation control system. In
order to allow Ms. Zhang to focus on the business of the
Group, IR =EFETE#MAER AR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong
Machinery Company Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.
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Ms. Zhang Jinghua joined the Group in April 2009 as the
director of Sanzhi Gongkong, and in December 2011, she was
appointed as its general manager. Sanzhi Gongkong was
deregistered in December 2015. Since July 2012, she has acted
as our vice-general manager (Bl I2). In August 2013, she
was appointed as the executive Director. In August 2015, she
was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director and resigned as the vice-general manager.

Mr. GAO Feng (Sl&), aged 53, joined the Group in July 2012,
and was appointed as the non-executive Director since 24 July
2012. Mr. Gao is the general partner of H/E FEREEEF D
(BRR&#) (Shanghai Yudao Investment Management Centre
(Limited Partnership)*) and b/&EtEREZERFAL(BREE)
(Shanghai Shidao Investment Development Centre (Limited
Partnership)*), who are the general partner and limited partner of
Yudao Tiansui (one of our pre-listing Investors), respectively. He
is also a member of the audit committee of the Board.

Mr. Gao Feng graduated from Hangzhou University (/X Z2)
(now being part of Zhejiang University (#T)TA£)) with a
bachelor’s degree in law in July 1989. He is a holder of PRC
lawyer’s licence issued by /8T &)%AB (Shanghai City Ministry
of Justice) in January 1991. From 1998 to 2013, Mr. Gao
worked in various renowned law firms in the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Chaojian (2|$8%), aged 55, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in July 2012. He is also a
member of the audit committee, the chairman of the
remuneration and appraisal committee and a member of the
strategic committee of the Board. Mr. Liu is not involved in the
Group’s research and development activities.

Mr. Liu Chaojian graduated from PZ AT ESEER (Xi'an
Institute of Metallurgy and Architecture®) (now known as Xi’an
University of Architecture and Technology (P8 % 2 ERI K 2))
with a bachelor’'s degree in metallurgy in July 1987. In
November 1998, he was conferred by the State Bureau of
Metallurgical Industry (BZ)6 € T % /3) with the qualification of
an advanced level engineer. Since July 1987, Mr. Liu has
worked in the China Metallurgical Industry Planning and
Research Institute (/A& L E#Thc) and his current
positions are the deputy chief engineer and senior engineer at
professor level.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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From September 2010 to August 2013, Mr. Liu Chaojian acted
as the independent director of Ningxia Xinri Hengli Steel Wire
Company Limited (2 E 31 H1E /1 il 44 4Ef% 5 BBR A 7)) (Shanghai
Stock Exchange Stock Code: 600165).

Mr. GAO Fuping (EE ), aged 57, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Gao is
also a member of the remuneration and appraisal committee
and the nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Gao Fuping obtained a master’s degree in law from Shanxi
University (LLZEXRE) in July 1993 and a doctor’s degree in civil
commercial law (RfEA2) from China University of Political
Science and Law (FEIEEAZ) in July 1998. In September
1995, Mr. Gao was admitted as a qualified lawyer by the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC. In September 2001, he was
recognised as the “2001FE E tfEE KX 23 (dawn scholar of
the year 2001 (seventh year) by E/EM#EZE <€ (Shanghai
Education Committee*) and E/BMH A ZHREEELE (Shanghai
Educational Development Foundation®).

Since July 1998, Mr. Gao Fuping has lectured in East China
University of Political Science and Law (3% BEAZ) and has
served as lecturer, deputy professor and professor. From June
2004 to February 2014, Mr. Gao served as the dean of the
Intellectual Property School (A1 2 # ZFx). Since March 2014,
Mr. Gao has served as the dean of BfEZEIZThT (Property Law
Research Institute*) of East China University of Political Science
and Law (ERBUEKS).

From June 2011 to March 2014, Mr. Gao Fuping acted as an
independent non-executive director of Founder Broadband
Network Service Company Limited (77 1E & #4348 IR 7S A% 15 B R
73 a]), a joint stock company established in the PRC, which was
converted into Founder Broadband Network Services Co., Ltd.
(H EEAREREABR AT in April 2014. Since 17 April 2019,
Mr. Gao Fuping has acted as an independent non-executive
director of Duiba Group Limited (Stock code: 01753).

Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo ({7&BH), aged 49, was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Ho
is also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
the nomination committee of the Board.
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Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) with an
honours diploma in accounting in July 1996. He was admitted
as an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now
known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in
March 2000 and is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has over 15 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance-related matters. As of the date
of this annual report, Mr. Ho has worked or is working in the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange:

#iE g 153 45 58% Bk £5

Name Stock Code Position Tenure
BEREBARDA 464 EREs 200045 A £20065 7 A
Best Wide Group Limited (ER20015F11 AR E) accounting manager May 2000 to July 2006

(delisted in November 2001)

BREEERERERRA 254
(EB#EBABALAERER
BRAR)

National United Resources Holdings Limited
(formerly known as eCyberChina Holdings
Limited at the material time)

E—HBEEERRAR 82
(EBRREBABARLTNRER
BRAR)

V1 Group Limited (formerly known as Yanion
International Holdings Limited at the
material time)

BEEREBERDA 467
United Energy Group Limited

AYTTERERERIE R M AR A A 8301
Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High Technology
Corporation Limited

REEEAR (AIEABBEEERERAR) 8315
Greatwalle Inc. (formerly known as King
Force Group Holdings Limited)

BEEXERER QA 2212
Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited

ENRENEERROARADF 6866
Zuoli Kochuang Micro-finance Company

Limited
BIREERSFRAA 1227

National Investments Fund Limited

AR R IER IR A
26 BERNENMEBROBERAF

HITEE

executive director

BB Es
financial controller

HITEE

executive director

ARBEIHE

qualified accountant

ERESE
accounting manager

NGIE
company secretary

NAME
company secretary

BUERTES
independent non-executive
director

B BERNAWE
chief financial officer &
company secretary

B TES
independent non-executive
director

MBBERANRWE
chief financial officer &
company secretary

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

200443 A £200449 A
March 2004 to September 2004

200443 A £2004F 128

March 2004 to December 2004
200541 A £2006%F2 A

January 2005 to February 2006
200544 A £20069F3 A

April 2005 to March 2006
2006498 £2010F3 A
September 2006 to March 2010

200844 A £2010%2 A
April 2008 to February 2010

201357 HZE2014%2
July 2013 to February 2014

201659 A 2201847 A
September 2016 to July 2018

201454 R 2201845104
April 2014 to October 2018

2014F 4 A Z=2020F6 H29A
April 2014 to 29 June 2020

2018F10A &%
October 2018 to present
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From April 2010 to February 2014, Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has
also acted as the accounting manager of Carlico International
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kinco Enterprises
Limited). Mr. Ho has also acted as the financial controller of
Great China Brokerage Limited on a part-time basis from
October 2012 to February 2014.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. PENG Jiashan (8M0LL), aged 57, was appointed as our
supervisor as a shareholder representative with effect from 15
August 2014. Mr. Peng graduated from Jiangsu University (JL#k
KX E) majoring in mechanical and electronic engineering (#4# =
FIT#) in July 2002. Mr. Peng received the qualification of
engineer (LI2AM) from #EIHFTAER (Wuxi City Personnel
Bureau®) in September 2003. He received the qualification of
head teacher (IE&#&RZAD) from JLE & A E RN € REE
(Human Resources And Social Security Department of Jiangsu
Province®) in November 2019.

From July 1988 to September 1991, Mr. Peng Jiashan worked

currently known as 58 E M2 (Wuxi School of
Technology®)) as an internship tutor (& & ¥5&EEHA0). From
September 1991 to August 2005, Mr. Peng worked in T
BB T ER (Jiangyin City Transport Workers School*) as a
teacher. Since August 2005 till now, Mr. Peng has worked in )T
BETRBERMEAE P/ OR (Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin Central
School of Vocational Technology Education®, currently known as
T#EBIEPEEFEER (Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin Secondary
Professional School*)) as a teacher. Mr. Peng has been granted
jointy by AHTEREMRBEBZEZEE (Jiangyin City Transport
Bureau Commission*) and JLREMA#/E (Jiangyin City Transport
Bureau®) the title of sL#EAE (T{E)#& (advanced (working)
producer®) in February 2000 and January 2001, respectively.
He was granted the title of &5 ME A A TIEE (outstanding
educator in Wuxi City*) by &2 E B (Wuxi City Education
Bureau®) in September 2019.
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Ms. WEI Yi (f£2E), aged 51, was appointed as our supervisor
as a shareholder representative with effect from 15 August
2014. Ms. Wei obtained a bachelor's degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (& 15 % ##) from
Southeast University (BEEAE) in July 1991. From August 1996
to July 1999, Ms. Wei studied Modern Financial Accounting
courses at Xidian University (7% & F £ X&) and graduated
from Xidian University in July 1997. Ms. Wei received the
certificate of accounting professional issued by the Financial
Department of Shaanxi Province (BR75%4& BF B EE) in April 2003.

After graduating from Southeast University, Ms. Wei worked
as an engineer in FEIARBNE 212 2% (General Logistics
Department of the People’s Liberation Army*). From January 2005
to December 2008, Ms. Wei worked as the chief financial officer
at PRERAT 2 RIEAFE AT (Shaanxi Red Star Boiler Company
Limited®). From May 2009 to August 2017, Ms. Wei worked
as the deputy general manager of ST TR CFII) BR
2 A] (Zhuo Sui Electronic Science and Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*). Since September 2017 till now, Ms. Wei
has worked as the deputy general manager of Shenzhen ASA
Industrial Co., Ltd.

Ms. YANG Jinghua (5§ ZE), aged 39, was appointed as our
supervisor as the employee representative with effect from July
2012. Ms. Yang graduated with a major in business
administration (modern corporate administration) from FB 9 &
BB AZ (China Central Radio and TV University*) in May 20086.
From July 2000 to June 2006, she worked in {E5 T FBEHTE
FHMRAF (Wuxi Alps Electronic Company Limited®) and her
last position was training officer. From June 2006 to February
2007, she worked in KFREEHREER A AIEEG D RF]
(Nippon Express (China) Company Limited* (now known as H3i#
BB (R E) AR AR, which was engaged in statistics
work. Since May 2009, Ms. Yang has worked in the Company
on personnel related work.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. OU Guojian, aged 54, graduated from Soochow University
in June 1988, majoring in Organic Chemistry. In June 2000, he
was granted the engineer qualification by &/ ZE 2K i A B B
BT E4EE /AP AT (Job Title Working Group of Technical
Professionals of Changzhou City”).

Mr. Ou Guojian served as the technical quality manager in & #
B2 BEEE (Wujin Pesticide Factory®) from August 1988 to May
2002, the R&D Engineer in &N EEREF R /A7) (Changzhou
Kangli Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*) from May 2002 to March
2004; the R&D Engineer in JTEHJIME TAHR AR (Jangyin
Baichuan Chemical Co., Ltd.*) from March 2004 to February
2005, the production technology minister in STEEE T/ THRE A
Al (Jiangyin Chengjiang Chemical Co., Ltd.*) from March 2005
to July 2011. In August 2011, he joined the Company as sales
director and was promoted to vice-general manager in October
2016.

Mr. HUANG Liming (E3LBH), aged 40, graduated with a major
in automatic control from Wuxi Institute of Technology (% 554 3
R EB3) in July 2004, and a major in business administration
from Jiangnan University ((LFEIAEE) in July 2015. Mr. Huang was
granted the title of A8 T (intelligent staff*) in the 2013-
2014 Labour Competition (2013-2014FE i T 4S5 EEE) in
April 2015, which was organised by the BIIR ELZHBEE TS
(Federation of Trade Unions of Changan Street, Huishan®).

Mr. Huang Liming acted as the head of electric department of )T
e =T # M ABR AR (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery
Company Limited*) from July 2004 to March 2010. JIfE={£T
T AR A A (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery Company
Limited*) was deregistered in July 2012.

Mr. Huang Liming acted as the vice-general manager of Jiangyin
Sanzhi since March 2010. Jiangyin Sanzhi was deregistered in
December 2015.

Mr. Huang Liming acted as the director of the production
department of the Company, and was promoted to be vice-
general manager in August 2015.

—E-TEERE 29
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



EXF EERGREEENE

Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

BEELL 405 MRGEKRBEE

FEFBEESET - 2013F ERFIIFELR
SR ENEECWEEREE  TEA
FEAREMBEANDERMESRES &
FREE AR RN B B BEB A AR AT = AT
BERMVBERES  2010FEFE A
T E RN & (REE 30 K A 3 B B SR HE o &
RAMN B EERMARERESES : 2020
FREEETEGHAIESE (CMA) -

ISEBELZ L 2002F E20054F + B MA T
4155 B BR A RIE K on BB AS IR 5 2005F &=
20104 - LB AL AR = A B EFE B
2 2011F2 8 E201267 A £ AR A
BT E 20127 2201568 »

EARBEZEEERANETLEEEFEER
X 201556 AESEEARARAIEFTEW
£ 2019F 11 ARSEAERRARMNT K2

BE o
o

Y EEEE

%{\\ Dﬁg z 3 Iy NE=]
30 HERNENEROBERLDF

Ms. FENG Lili (‘5% &), aged 40, graduated from Nanjing
University of Finance & Economics (F8 & 81 48 KX &) majoring in
finance and accounting. In 2013, she obtained the EE & E
B K FEZE (Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary*) from the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the @it HEERIMIIHRE K FE
(Qualification Certificate of Speciality and Technology in
Accounting (Elementary)®) approved and authorised by the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China and the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China. In 2019, she obtained the &&tE%
Rilfh &% FEZE (Qualification Certificate of Speciality and
Technology in Accounting (Intermediate)*) approved and
authorised by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC and the Ministry of Finance of the PRC. In
2020, she obtained her Certified Management Accountant (CMA)
certification.

Ms. Feng Lili was a manager of the Finished Products
Department at /42 L& & B R A 7 (Yangzhou Jiyuan Textile
Co., Ltd.*) from 2002 to 2005 and a business manager at & i
LI PR E B S (Changshu Proportion Beddings Factory®) from
2005 to 2010. She worked at the Management Department of
the Company from February 2011 to July 2012 and as a
representative for securities matters at the board office of the
Company from July 2012 to June 2015. She has been the
secretary to the Board of the Company since June 2015 and
the financial controller of the Company since November 2019.

* For identification purposes only

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

On 20 July 2012, the current session of the board of
supervisors of the Company (the “Board of Supervisors”) was
established upon the approval of the inaugural meeting of the
Company. The current session of the Board of Supervisors
comprises of three supervisors, namely Mr. Peng Jiashan, Ms.
Wei Yi and Ms. Yang Jinghua.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, for the Company’s
long term interests and its Shareholders’ interests, the Board of
Supervisors acted in strict compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, rules, regulatory documents,
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and
the Listing Rules and earnestly performed their duties of
supervision as to the acts of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The main area of work of the
Board of Supervisors in 2020 is summarised as follows:

the articles of

I. MEETINGS CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors convened three meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

II. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The work of the third session of the Board of Supervisors
mainly comprised of the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of resolutions of the
general meetings
The Board of Supervisors exercised supervision and
inspection of the implementation of the resolutions in
general meetings by the Board and the senior
management of the Company through observation and
attendance at the board meetings and general meetings.
The Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that the
Directors and senior management of the Company have
diligently performed their duties in compliance with
resolutions of the general meetings. No violation of any
laws or regulations or the Articles of Association or any act
which jeopardises the interests of the Company or
Shareholders has been found in the performance of duties
by the Directors and senior management of the Company.
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WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(Continued)

Inspection over legal
operations

compliance of the Group’s

The Board of Supervisors exercised supervision on a
regular basis over the legal compliance and rationality of
the Group’s operation and management in its ordinary
works. It has also exercised supervision over work
performance of the Board and senior management of the
Company. The Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that
the Group’s operation is sound and rational, and is in
compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and rules
and the Articles of Association. The members of the Board
and senior management of the Group have conscientiously
and diligently performed their duties, and none of their acts
would prejudice the interests of the Group or the
Shareholders.

Inspection over the Group’s daily operating activities
The Board of Supervisors exercised supervision over the
Group’s operating activities. The Board of Supervisors is of
the opinion that the Group has a sound internal control
system and has made a great progress in the formulation
and implementation of its internal work procedures, thus
effectively controlled its exposure to various operating risks.
The Group’s operation is in compliance with the PRC laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



. BEETIEw

4. BEFEENHBRR
EEeOZEAEEMN2020F 44
g HmE  BEEBRREASEEHRITA
B BECR RER B R AR ASEE
BERMBBEZNFBE - BESER
7 2020F iR A IR e A T R
RNEER P IEAR D AL E EE -

REARK BEFESHEERBETEEE
RAMARMBEEREER  BITHER
1% HRERRAE -

EFeTE
L]

R ET % - 20213 A26H

BREERE
Report of the Board of Supervisors

1. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(Continued)

4. Inspection over the Group’s financial condition
The Board of Supervisors has verified the Group’s 2020
consolidated financial statements, supervised and inspected
the Group’s implementation of relevant financial policies and
legislations as well as details on the Group’s assets,
financial income and expenditure. The Board of Supervisors
is of the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
for 2020 fairly reflected the Group’s financial position and
operating results.

Looking forward, the Board of Supervisors will continue to carry
out its duties in strict compliance with the Articles of Association
and the relevant laws and regulations and protect the interests
of the Shareholders.

Peng Jiashan
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Jiangsu, China, 26 March 2021
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code for corporate governance.
The Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
CG Code provisions for the Year. The key corporate governance
practices of the Company is summarised below.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and supervisors of the Company. Upon making
specific enquiries of all the Directors and supervisors of the
Company, each of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company confirmed that he/she has fully complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
Year. The Board is of the opinion that the Model Code has
been fully complied with during the year end 31 December
2020.

Any employee of the Company or director or employee of any
subsidiary of the Company who, because of their office in the
Company, are likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the securities of the Company, have also been
requested not to deal in securities of the Company when he
would be prohibited from dealing by the Model Code as if he
were a Director.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders. The Board has established four
Board committees, being the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration and appraisal committee (the
“Remuneration and Appraisal Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the strategic
committee (the “Strategic Committee”) (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang, two non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Zhang Jinghua and Mr. Gao Feng, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu
Chaojian, Mr. Gao Fuping and Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo. Mr.
Zhang Degang is the chairman of the Board.

Their biographical details and their family relationships (where
applicable) are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to
30 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their
roles and functions and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors are available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.

Mr. Zhang Degang, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, is the brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua, who are the executive Director and general manager of
the Group, and the non-executive Director, respectively. Save as
disclosed, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the
Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, Directors’ appointments or re-appointments,
investment policies, dividend and accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the executive Directors and the members
of senior management. The functions and powers that have
been delegated are reviewed periodically by the Board to ensure
that they remain appropriate.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. The Board
also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report
to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s
expense upon their request. During the Year, all Directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance
and financial position to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of directorships or other positions which they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill and
diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. Every
newly appointed Director receives an induction to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his
duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules
and requirements.

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
and to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices, the Directors have participated
in the following continuous professional development in the Year:

B E R EE a0 E

Training organised by

EENA Name of Directors professional organisation
BITES Executive Directors

o 12 Al 55 A Mr. Zhang Degang v
oK 12298 5t A Mr. Zhang Degiang v
ERITES Non-executive Directors

SREFELZ T Ms. Zhang Jinghua v
5134 Mr. Gao Feng v
BIFEBITESE Independent Non-executive Directors

EEERE e Mr. Liu Chaojian v
fa] B B & Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo v
SIS Mr. Gao Fuping v

M ARFERBZEFRERIBN 2 EFEEEG
HTERREK

Note: The Company has received from each of the Directors the confirmations on taking
continuous professional training.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer are separate and are not performed by the same
individual as this ensures better checks and balances and hence
better corporate governance. Mr. Zhang Degang holds the
position of the chairman of the Board, who is primarily
responsible for the overall strategies, planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Zhang Degiang serves as the
general manager of the Group, who is primarily responsible for
the operations of the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving
adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the
overall interests of the Shareholders and the Group. They serve
actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide their
independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One of
the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted an
annual confirmation in writing of his independence to the
Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
the contents of such confirmations and upon the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of the Board Committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and Strategic
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and written
terms of reference approved by the Board covering its duties,
powers and functions. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee are available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three Directors, namely Mr. Ho Yuk
Ming, Hugo (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Liu
Chaojian (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Gao
Feng (non-executive Director). Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, relationship with
external auditor of the Group, overseeing the audit process
and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. These include reviewing the
Group’s interim and annual reports.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and for the year
ended 31 December 2019, respectively, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
the report prepared by the external auditor covering major
findings in the course of the audit, the selection and
appointment of the external auditor as well as the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
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EEZEEE®) BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
() BEEREESE W) () Audit Committee (Continued)
RAFREERE  BERZECEER Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Audit Committee
FAMGEE P EwE - has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
Year.
FN BEZLZEQCRTOAEE - During the Year, four meetings of the Audit Committee
BRI Z B gk BT F s E 5 N were held. The attendance records of individual committee
™ members are set out below:
HE EHRAH
Attendance/
REESZ Name of member Number of Meetings
B AE Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 4/4
R[S AE Mr. Liu Chaojian 4/4
gt Mr. Gao Feng 4/4
(i) FHHEEZZESE (i) Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
FTEEZEZE S BREEERST The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was
AIRKS. - REBERE H=FFF established with terms of reference in compliance with the
B DR ARIERE L E B IR CG Code. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
TEE) BBFEE (BIENTE comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chaojian
F)RREREE(RITESE) o 2= (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Gao Fuping
BAERTNHEERZESESF - (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang
Degiang (executive Director). Mr. Liu Chaojian is the
chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.
FTNEEZZEENEERE 2R The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration and
iai%%%&%?&aﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁw Appraisal Committee are to review and make
BRBERARRITESRRRERE recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
B FF R B ENAFE - BEHIE I S HT BN R structure and policy for all Directors and senior
KRR IEA M EABRENEF - Wik management as well as the specific remuneration packages
NEEBERESSREES BEE for the executive Directors and senior management and on
E2HBEBRERNFHFMMOF®R - A2 the establishment of a formal and transparent process for
TE’J TR B ERRBEEBRTER developing such remuneration policy. No Director takes part
%Iffﬁﬂi’&%@$&ﬂ 5 S 17 8 i B in any discussion on his own remuneration. The Company’s
o RRRIEETIGZKE FES objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain fair and
E’\JI{/EE KB CBE IHHER competitive packages based on business requirements and
AEBRREREZ  ETRESSK industry practice. In order to determine the level of
BE B ke KF - remuneration and fees paid to the members of the Board,
market rates and factors such as each Director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the Group’s
performance are taken into account.
40 EERNENEROGERAA
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee (Continued)
During the Year, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee has, inter alia, reviewed the remuneration policy

and structure relating to the Directors and senior

SREERENFTHMNGE  YRE management of the Company as well as the specific
EgREER - remuneration packages for the executive Directors and
senior management, and made recommendations to the
Board.
EW CHMEEZZEEERIT X During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration and
- ERZESR BN ELESE Appraisal Committee was held. The attendance records of
I - individual committee members are set out below:
HE EHRE
Attendance/
REZ Name of member Number of Meetings
R[S AE Mr. Liu Chaojian 1/1
=B FEE Mr. Gao Fuping 1/1
oK 1898 St A Mr. Zhang Degiang 1/1
FALRcHEDBEIONAEEES The remuneration of the members of the directors,

EENEREREKBEHMES W
T -

e E (BT)

Remuneration bands (HK$)

supervisors and the senior management of the Group by
band for the Year is set out below:

AR

Number of persons

T £250,000
Nil to 250,000

250,000& 500,000
250,000 to 500,000

500,000% 1,000,000
500,000 to 1,000,000
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises
three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Degang (executive
Director), Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Gao Fuping (independent non-
executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the composition of the Board, including its
structure, size and diversity, at least annually to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group. It is also responsible to consider and recommend to
the Board any suitably qualified person to become a
member of the Board, monitor the succession planning of
Directors and assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also give
consideration to the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) when identifying suitable qualified
candidates to become the members of the Board, and the
Board will review the Board Diversity Policy, so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2015. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The Board has adopted the nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) on 24 August 2018 which sets out
the nomination criteria and procedures for the Company to
select candidate(s) for possible inclusion in the Board. The
Nomination Policy could assist the Company to achieve
board diversity in the Company and enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance
standard.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee (Continued)

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such
as the qualifications, skills, integrity and experience will be
taken into consideration as a whole. In the case of
independent non-executive Directors, they must further
satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Since the selection of candidates should
ensure that diversity remains a central feature of the Board,
a range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience would be considered.

The procedure and process to identify potential candidates
for the Board would be as follows:

(1)  identifying potential candidates, including recommendations
from the Board members, professional search firms and
the shareholders of the Company;

(2) evaluating the candidates based on the approved
selection criteria through methods such as reviewing
the resume and conducting the background checks;

(8) reviewing the profiles of the shortlisted candidates and
interview them; and

(4) making recommendations to the Board on the selected
candidates.

The Nomination Policy also includes the Board succession
plan to assess whether vacancies on the Board would be
created or expected due to the Directors’ resignation,
retirement, death and other circumstances and to identify
candidates in advance if necessary. The Nomination Policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
and assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(iii) Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the Year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held. The attendance records of individual committee

™~ members are set out below:
HiE EHmAH
Attendance/
e E Name of member Number of Meetings
SR 12 5% A& Mr. Zhang Degang 1/1
M B BA%E Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 1/1
=it Mr. Gao Fuping 1/1

(v) BEBEEET
BRZESDENYL  RAEBESR
CB=REFAEK 2R RRER
FEMGTESR) REBREE@NTT
ER)NMBIHEELECBUIFNTE
F)  REMLEERBKEZESTE -

BRZEENIZREEMNARAN
FHZEREBANESTSRLES -

FR - BRZESC (APEE)BF
ARRMBEE R RPER - Wil
BEER AR o

FA BRZESCRT-Rg% -
BRI % & & &8 F 42 ek# 5

(iv) Strategic Committee
The Strategic Committee was established with terms of
reference and comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Degang (executive Director), Mr. Zhang Deqgiang (executive
Director) and Mr. Liu Chaojian (independent non-executive
Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman of the
Strategic Committee.

The primary function of the Strategic Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the long-term
development strategies of the Company.

During the Year, the Strategic Committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the financing plans and long term development of
the Company and given suggestions accordingly.

During the Year, one meeting of the Strategic Committee
was held. The attendance records of individual committee

™ members are set out below:
HE SRR
Attendance/
54=} %1 Name of member Number of Meetings
SR 12 Ml 5t A& Mr. Zhang Degang 1/1
SRiEoR LA Mr. Zhang Degiang 1/1
R[St Mr. Liu Chaojian 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required to
hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be convened
and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice of at least
fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular Board meeting
while the notice of an extraordinary Board meeting shall be
despatched five days prior to the date of the meeting. The
notice shall state the time, venue and means by which the
Board meeting will be convened, and an agenda and
accompanying board papers shall be sent to all the Directors at
least three days before the relevant meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least half
of the total number of the Directors. A Director may attend the
Board meeting in person, or appoint another Director in writing
as his proxy to attend the Board meeting. The secretary to the
Board is responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes of
Board meetings and ensuring that such minutes are available for
inspection by any Director.

During the Year, six Board meetings were held and the
attendance records are set out below:

HE ERRE
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

SRIBMI A
SRIBWALE
REFER L
SIEEE
el
B RALLE
=EFEE

. Zhang Degang 6/6
. Zhang Degiang 6/6
. Zhang Jinghua 6/6
. Gao Feng 6/6
. Liu Chaojian 6/6
. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 6/6
. Gao Fuping 6/6
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the company convened one annual general
meeting of the Company. The meeting was held on 29 June
2020 and the attendance record is set out below:

HE SRR
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

RIS
R s
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Bl 5 4
glE2 s
B %L
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. Zhang Degang 11
. Zhang Degiang 1/1
. Zhang Jinghua 11
. Gao Feng 11
. Liu Chaojian 1/1
. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo 11
. Gao Fuping 11

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be subject
to election at the Company’s general meetings with a term of
office of three years and may be re-elected. The Company has
implemented a set of effective procedures for the appointment
The Nomination Committee shall,
accordance with provisions of the relevant laws and regulations
and the Articles of Association, take into account the practical
situations of the Company, consider the selection criteria,
selection procedures and terms of office of the Directors, and
record and submit the resolutions to the Board for approval. All
newly nominated Directors are subject to election and approval
at general meetings.

of new Directors. in

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors will retire and
stand for re-election for a term of three years at the annual
general meeting (the “2021 AGM”) of the Company held on 18
June 2021. At for the independent non-executive Directors, due
to the expiration of their tenure as the independent non-
executive Directors in six consecutive sessions of the Board,
they would retire at the conclusion of the 2021 AGM and will
not offer themselves for re-election.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors consists of three members. The
employee representative supervisor, namely Ms. Yang Jinghua,
was elected by employees, and the other supervisors were
elected by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder
Representatives”). Each of the supervisors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date. All of the current
supervisors will be re-elected for a term of three years at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2021.
The functions and duties of the Board of Supervisors include,
but are not limited to: reviewing and verifying financial reports
and, if in doubt, appointing certified public accountants and
practicing auditors to re-examine the Company’s financial
information; investigate when an unusual operation situation of
the Company is discontinued; supervising the performance of the
Directors and senior management members, and monitoring
whether they had acted in violation of the laws, regulations and
Articles of Association in the performance of their duties;
requesting the Directors and senior management members to
rectify actions which are detrimental to the Company’s interests;
and exercising other rights given to them under the Articles of
Association.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an
external service provider, namely Ms. Ho Wing Yan (“Ms. Ho”),
who was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”). Mr. Zhang Degang, the chairman
of the Board and executive Director, is the primary corporate
contact person of the Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that the Board policies and procedures are
followed. Ms. Ho is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and should also facilitate induction
and professional development of Directors. During the Year, the
Company Secretary has complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by
undertaking not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash
flows for the Year and in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Company has
selected appropriate accounting policies and has applied them
consistently based on prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates. The Board considers that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events
or conditions that may affect the business of the Group or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.

The responsibility of PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this annual
report.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. During the Year, the fees paid or
payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of its audit
services provided to the Group was RMB1,396,000 and no non-
audit services were provided.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the Year under review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure,
enable all its Shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and allow all Shareholders to engage
actively with the Company. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, the shareholder communication policy and other
relevant internal procedures of the Company, the Shareholders
enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the Board
and the Shareholders. The Company encourages the
participation of the Shareholders through annual general
meetings and other general meetings where the
Shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board,
and to exercise their right to vote at meetings. The
Company shall arrange notices of meetings and circulars
containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent to the
Shareholders no less than 45 days before the relevant
meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Enquiries to the Board

The Company encourages Shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make enquiries by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance
matters to the Board and Board Committees at the general
meetings or providing written notice of such enquiries to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Suite 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) alone or
jointly holding 10% or more of the shares have the right to
require the Board to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting by a written request. Within ten days after
receipt of the request, the Board shall, in accordance with
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, gives a
written response in respect of whether or not it agrees to
convene a shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting.

If the Board agrees to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, a notice of shareholders’ general meeting
shall be issued within five days after the Board reaches such
a resolution. Where the notice alters the original proposal, the
approval of the relevant shareholders shall be required.

If the Board refuses to convene a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting, or fails to respond within ten days after
receipt of the request, the Shareholder(s) alone or in
aggregate holding 10% or more of the Shares have the right
to propose to the Board of Supervisors by a written
requisition the convening of a shareholders’ extraordinary
general meeting.

If the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene a shareholders’
extraordinary general meeting, a notice of shareholders’
general meeting shall be issued within five days after receipt
of the request. Where the notice alters the original proposal,
the approval of the relevant Shareholders shall be required.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BRERE RRRERN 2 COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings (Continued)
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Failure of the Board of Supervisors to issue a notice of
general meeting within the stipulated period shall be deemed
as its failure to convene and preside over a general meeting,
and Shareholder(s) alone or in aggregate holding 10% or
more of the Company’s Shares for ninety consecutive days or
more shall be entitled to convene and preside over the
meeting.

The Shareholders require to convene an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting shall follow the following
procedures:

(@) Shareholders who separately or jointly hold 10% or
more of the shares of the Company carrying voting
rights may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by
signing a written request or several copies in the
same form and to illustrate the proposed resolutions
of the meetings. The Board shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting as
soon as practicable upon receipt of the foresaid
written request. The aforesaid amount of shareholding
is calculated as of the date of the submission of the
written request by the Shareholders.

(b) A shareholder’s general meeting shall be convened in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

All reasonable expenses incurred by convening and holding
the aforesaid meeting by Shareholders due to the failure of
the Board to hold such meeting in response to the
aforesaid request shall be borne by the Company. Such
expenses shall be deducted from the amounts due by the
Company to the Director(s) who have defaulted their duties.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(iv) Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting
In overseeing and monitoring the business operation of the
Company, the Shareholders have the right to put forward
proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders individually or
together holding 3% or more of the Company’s voting
shares have the right to put up ad hoc proposals in writing
to the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business in Hong Kong
currently situated at Suite 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the
Company shall include such ad hoc proposals into the
agenda for such general meeting if they are the matters
which fall within the functions and powers of general
meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be within
the scope of duties of the general meetings. It shall have a
clear topic and specific matters to be resolved on, and
shall be in compliance with relevant requirements of the
laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of
Association.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) on 13 May 2014 which sets out the appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend
payment of the Company. The Company takes priority to
distributing dividends in cash and shares its profits with the
Shareholders. The dividend distribution decision of the Company
will depend on, among others, the financial results, the current
and future operations, liquidity and capital requirements, financial
condition and other factors as the Board may deem relevant.
The Dividend Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association during the
Year.

The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



oL B 3 e P9 BB B 4

FR BERZEECHARREEEN®
EAEBERREEMANEEFENE
H - EFECETEEEALRTRMEER
R EENABEEN TR - EFE
BREEE T R EE A K B KBRS
BISFrREAENRERIEE RIEE - W
AEBEE RBMOEREENABPEE
A - R ERAMEEEEAHREEKE
BEENER - WERABAERERM K
BRSIE LA IR (HEFREH) MIRE ©

ARRRIEEECDHEEE M5 MERIES
FHERYL-EEZEBER  BERERF - A
RIEBETSERCRENE R NEMED
HEE ZERTFELCE REVYHE
HEER 5 - S0 0] a2 3 £ O BGE M 88
IR IR ERE -

EXeCREERARANERERE LA
MEERL - BFHARENRAREER
MIEREE 12 R A U ) F R ) B AR
7 MEBEZZESEHNR EZERR
[\ IR M A EBEE I R DA R
e maBREPEETAERFEREZAEE
RA AL - AR B MRA AL EZE
B AR R AR B S R B T AT
RBIHE - FIERFANERERRE &
BRELGLEENNDER  URAEE
FIRNERZRTE - PhE TN E (A ARH S M
RMIEER -

EEEARE
Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
management of the Company the matters relating to risk
management and internal control of the Group. The Board
complied with the code provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG code. The Board has
overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is wiling to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems has been conducted on an annual basis and
upon the review by the Audit Committee, the Board was of the
view that the risk management and internal control systems are
considered to be effective and adequate. Self-assessment and
comprehensive risk assessment surveys have been conducted
during the review. The Company also has an internal audit
function to carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems, and has
procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage
actual or potential conflicts of interest. Stringent internal
structures have been designed to prevent the misuse of inside
information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

All Directors and those employees who could have access to,
and monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for
making appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of
such information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from
using inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the
form of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the
Listing Rules.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group is committed to promoting sustainable development,
which is extremely important to create long-term value for the
Group’s shareholders, clients, employees, other stakeholders, as
well as the general public. The Group cares about the impact of
its daily operation on the environment and the society and
strives to set a good example for the public; hence in
conducting business operation, it also makes great effort to
meet the stakeholders, the economy, the
environment, the society and corporate governance and strives
to achieve a fine balance.

interests of all

After reviewing the Company’s environmental, social and
governance practices and the relevant provisions of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guided”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules, the Board is satisfied that the Company has
complied with the “Comply or Explain” Provisions set out in the
ESG Reporting Guide for the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
Protecting the environment is one of our key concerns; we
are committed to protecting the environment and focusing
on environmental protection in our operation, hoping to
reduce our long-term negative impact on the environment
through close supervision and stringent control.

1. Energy Management

As indirect greenhouse gas emissions, which are
generated from our daily electricity power
consumption, are the main source of the Group’s
carbon footprint, we will keep monitoring and
disclosing the Group’s carbon footprint to find out and
control the impact of our daily operation on the
environment. At the same time, we will implement the
following energy-saving and energy efficiency
measures at various office locations to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions:

a. Install high-performance electrical equipments;

b. Require the purchasing department to purchase
energy-efficient products;
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R (@) ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al. FRBREBEREHER mkEL A1. Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
WEHES AERBEREYNEL gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
FHYBUR (8) of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes (Continued)

1. BEREE#) 1.  Energy Management (Continued)
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c. Employ automatic lighting control systems;

d. Deploy LED lighting on office floors;

e. Require employees to turn off the light and any
unnecessary energy device to reduce energy
consumption and avoid unnecessary waste of

energy;

f. Utilise natural light as much as possible on office
floors;

g. Install auxiliary electricity meters to monitor
electricity consumption; and

h. Other energy-saving and energy efficiency

measures.
RBE2017F1 A1 BB 2P B F Our finance department should collect information
B - AEEUBEFAETFNRE about the Group’s usage of electricity annually for the
BHERAERER  HEEER management to disclose in the Environmental, Social
RIE  HERELARESHHRE - and Governance report (the “ESG report”) in each

financial year starting from 1 January 2017.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Policies on emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes (Continued)

2.

Waste Management

In order to lighten the load of landfills, we adopt a
responsible waste management policy, including waste
avoidance, reducing waste from its source and reuse,
recycle and responsible disposal of waste. Our offices
should post memos and notices at conspicuous
places, encouraging the employees to reduce the
production of waste. We have introduced waste
separation measures from the sources of:

o

Waste paper (excluding paper cup, paper plate,
etc.);

b.  Metal (including aluminum cans and other metal
cans);

c. Plastics (plastic bottles, containers and packaging
materials); and

d.  Other recyclables (such as old clothes, electrical
appliances, computers, magazines, etc.).

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
PRC Environmental Protection Law (% AR HEFEH
IRIER#X), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution (1% A R HAME K55
Ah585%), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution (FF#E A R HEFIE AR,
S5 B5363%) and the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise
Pollution (F# A RIEMBEIRFRE)SEAZE) and
other relevant laws and regulation on environmental
protection in all material respects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Policies on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials)

1.

Reducing electricity consumption

We will comply with the Group’s policies on emissions
of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes to reduce electricity
consumption.

Paper reduction

In order to reduce waste paper, we have developed
the following measures:

a. Deploy recycling bins to collect used paper
products such as waste papers, posters, letters
and envelopes;

b. Place waste paper recycling bins next to printers
for setting aside waste papers from papers that
have been printed only on one side and can be
reused;

c.  Print on both sides of paper;

d.  Write on both sides of paper;

e. Bring your own cup and avoid using paper cup;

f. Reuse stationeries such as file folders and
envelopes;

g. Reuse packaging boxes; and

h.  Ship waste paper, other than those containing
confidential information, to scrap paper
companies or paper mils for them to be
recycled into new paper.

Our finance department shall collect information about
the paper products the Company purchased and the
waste papers that are shipped to scrap paper
companies or paper mils for the management to
disclose in the ESG report in each financial year
starting from 1 January 2017.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Policies on effective use of resources (including
energy, water and other raw materials) (Continued)

3.

Water conservation

In Hong Kong and the PRC, fresh water is a precious
resource. We should economise on water, and try our
best to protect water resource, for which we have
developed the following measures:

a. Repair dripping faucet or hose in a timely manner;

b. Adopt effective water-saving production methods
and instruments;

c.  Check water consumption regularly; and
d.  Minimise water pressure.

Green procurement

Green procurement is aimed at reducing environmental
load. Quality, cost, delivery time are the main focuses
when the Group procures goods or chooses
suppliers, but on top of that, we give priority to
environmental friendly and energy-saving products. We
adopt the following measures:

a. Give priority to the most energy-efficient
products;

b.  Give priority to effective water-saving products;
c. Require the suppliers to reduce packaging
material; and

d.  Remind suppliers that we value environmental
protection and energy saving.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A3. Policies on minimising the Group’s significant impact
on environment and natural resources
The Group manages and minimises the impact it may
cause to the environment, directly or indirectly, through the
following methods:

1.  Make sure its business operation comply with the
environmental laws in Hong Kong and its operating
locations, including the PRGC;

2. Establish and improve environmental protection
mechanism to ensure that its operation does not
pollute water and land;

3.  Monitor gas emissions and use of resources, establish
emission reduction target;

4.  Make sure that in our daily business operation, with all
efforts, we conserve energy, water and other raw
materials to reduce direct impact on the environment;

5. Whenever the Company holds banquet, shark fin is out
of question and sustainable seafood should be
served. Order reasonable quantity and reduce waste;

6. Urge the employees to reduce paper usage and adopt
other energy-saving measures; and

7. Cooperate with government agencies and support
environmental organizations’ activities.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

As employees are important assets of the Company, we care
about their well-being, respect their personal traits, make sure
that all employees are subject to legislative protection and have
equal opportunity in their career path. We also strive to increase
their sense of belonging to the Group.

B1. Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare
1. Salary

We offer competitive pay and benefits to our
employees according to their job requirements and
individual performance. We will review the overall
salary and benefits annually to ensure the Company’s
competitiveness in local markets, and we will also
make reference to the relevant industries and similar
organisations. Each year, Key Performance Indicators
will provide direction and guidance to the employees’
individual work plan. We also assess the
achievements and contributions of the employees to
appraise and reward them.

2. Dismissal

We ensure that all employees are subject to
applicable employment laws, including:

a. Whenever an employee resigns or is being laid
off, the human resources department (“HR”)
should interview him or her before the
termination to find out the reason for the
termination;

b. HR is required to issue employment verification
document to the dismissed employee;

c. When the employer terminates an employee’s
employment contract, the dismissed employee
shall be given due notice or wages in lieu of
notice, and his or her annual leave and maternity
leave should not be counted towards the notice
period;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and

welfare (Continued)

2. Dismissal (Continued)

d. An employee cannot be dismissed when she has

been confirmed pregnant or given notice of
pregnancy;

e. An employee cannot be dismissed when he or
she takes a paid sick leave;

f. An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her giving evidence or information in any legal
proceeding relating to the enforcement of labour
laws, any industrial accident or any breach of
work safety regulations;

g. An employee cannot be dismissed due to his or
her membership in labour union or participating
in labour union activities; and

h.  An employee cannot be dismissed if he or she is
injured on duty, and a compensation agreement
has not yet been reached or the relevant
evaluation certificate has not yet been issued.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,

working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare (Continued)

3.

Recruitment and promotion

In the Group, recruitment and promotion should be
fair and open for all employees, and cannot be
affected by age, sex, physical or mental health status,
status, family status, race, skin colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation,
orientation and other factors, and the employees will
be recognised and rewarded for their contribution,
work performance and skills, while the Company will
do its best to provide them with good working
environment and development opportunity.

marital
sexual

Working hours and rest-periods
The employees shall enjoy proper rest periods under
the applicable laws and regulations.

Employees are entitled to enjoy the following rest
periods:

a. Each employee can take two days off in every 7
days;

b.  Statutory holidays;

c. Paid annual leave prescribed by their employment
contracts;

d. Sick leave;
e. Marriage leave;
f. Maternity leave; and

g. Paternity leave.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Policies on salary, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,

working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and

welfare (Continued)

5.

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare

Equal opportunity must be provided on recruitment,
training, promotion, transfer, remuneration, benefits
and termination of contract. Such opportunities shall
not be affected by factors such as age, gender,
physical or mental health status, marital status, family
status, race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political
affiliation and sexual orientation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
Labour Contract Law of the PRC (FF % A R HE A &
F)4 [AX) and other relevant laws and regulations on
employment in all material respects.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2. Policies on safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards
We are committed to protecting the health and safety of
the employees and the community, and we require all
employees to comply with all relevant occupational health
and safety regulations, and do our utmost to provide them
with a safe and healthy working environment. As a result,
we have implemented the following measures:

1. Develop internal guidelines to ensure that offices and
factories are in line with or better than the
requirements of relevant laws;

2. Establish safety procedures for the recognised
dangerous work;

3. Provide necessary protective equipment and medical
insurance to the employees;

4.  Ensure that the offices and working environment are
healthy and safe by regularly checking the

machineries and equipment;

5. Establish emergency measures such as fire or
explosion emergency plans;

6. Regularly arrange rescue, fire and evacuation drills;
7.  Establish mechanism to record industrial injuries and
analyse their causes;

8. Provide and maintain an environmental-friendly, healthy
and safe working condition;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2.

B3.

Policies on safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards (Continued)

9.  Drinking is not allowed during the working hours unless
with prior approval;

10. Actively promote environmental protection, health and
safety awareness of the employees, and support
development of environmental protection, health and
safety in the industry;

11. Provide all employees with job information, guidance,
training and supervision as required; and

12. Provide a smoke-free working environment.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC (f#E A RAMEM @REE)
and other relevant laws and regulations on health and
safety of employees in all material respects.

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. We understand that the employees’
knowledge and skills are essential to the Company’s
operation and business growth. Good development plan
lays a good foundation for the employees to face business
challenge in the future, and it also helps them to grasp
promotion opportunities and fulfill their career aspirations.
We provide the employees with effective training and
develop a clear promotion ladder, ensuring that the
employees have the required skills; we also nurture
outstanding successors for the Group and foster learning
atmosphere. The Group conducts performance evaluation
annually, and provide the staff with appropriate training,
and offer job, development and promotion opportunities for
outstanding employees based on the assessment result.
Under the Group’s human resource management system
requirements, the HR manager is responsible for carrying
out related assessment and training.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour

The Group firmly adopts a zero-tolerance policy on child
and forced labour, and strictly forbids such conduct which
is prohibited by international standards and relevant local
regulations of the places in which we operate. In all part of
our business operation (including our subcontractors or
suppliers), child and forced labour is not allowed and we
treat child and forced labour as a serious crime. Our
policies on preventing child and forced labour are as
follows:

1. Child labour refers to employment of people under 16
years of age, and if any country or region in which the
Company or its subsidiary operates has a more
stringent definition of child labour, such definition shall
prevail;

2. Forced labour refers to people providing labour or
service against their will, as a punishment or under
threat;

3. Hired employees must be at least 16 years of age. The
Group shall never recruit child labour and forced
labour, and if it knows that its suppliers or
subcontractors employ any child and forced labour,
the Group will not conduct business with them
anymore;

4.  Employees under 18 may not engage in any possible
hazardous work and are prohibited from working at
night lest it might affect their education;

5.  Before hiring any job applicant, HR should take
effective procedures to verify his or her age. HR
should check documents that can prove the age of
the applicant, including government-issued photo
identification and birth certificate, driver’'s license,
household register, academic certificates or any other
credentials that can prove the date of birth. HR must
ensure that the applicant’s appearance is consistent
with the photograph on the identification card;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour

(Continued)
6.

HR, especially those responsible for recruitment, should
take part in prevention training about child and forced
labour;

If employment of child labour under the legal minimum
age is found in the Group, we will see to the best
interests of the child, and take the following measures
in accordance with the relevant legislations:

Take the child away from the workplace
immediately, and ensure the safety of the child;

Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to
verify all relevant information, confirm whether the
child is under 16 years of age, sever labour
relations with the child, notify the local social
welfare institution, and take remedial measures to
protect the child’s best interest;

Send the child to a special occupational health
inspection institution to do medical check-up to
confirm the child’s physical and mental health,
and conduct investigation to fully understand the
child’s situation;

Provide the child with re-employment when he or
she reaches legal minimum age for employment;
and

Immediately find out the problems in the hiring
process of the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90 working days.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B4. Policies on preventing child and forced labour
(Continued)
8. If forced labour is found in the Group, we will take the
following measures in accordance with the relevant
legislations:

a. Take the labour away from the workplace
immediately and ensure the safety of the labour;

b. Immediately notify the person in charge of HR to
verify all relevant information and confirm whether
the person is subject to compulsory labour;

c. Send the labour to a special occupational health
inspection institution to do medical check-up to
confirm the labour’s physical and mental health,
and conduct investigation to fully understand the
labour’s situation; and

d. Immediately find out the problems in the hiring
process of the operating location and take
improvement measures within 90 working days.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the Labour
Law of the PRC (F%E AR KEFMEI4 E))%) and the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC (FF#E AR EFMBE LB A [EE) and
other relevant laws and regulations on employment in all
material respects.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

B5. Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain
We attach importance to developing and maintaining long-
term relationships with our suppliers, and look forward to
forming long-term partnerships with them. We will take a
fair and open principle on procurement of materials and
services. We will only cooperate with the suppliers that
share common moral values and standards with us. The
Group also supports and encourages the suppliers to
promote efficient use of resources and environmental
protection and fulfill corporate social responsibility:

1. We advocate the principle of fair and open competition,
and develop and maintain long-term relationships with
the suppliers and contractors based on mutual trust;

2. We have strict ethical standards in the procurement of
materials and services to ensure the quality of the
finished products and maintain the continued
confidence of the clients, suppliers and general
public;

3. We review our suppliers and assess them based on
price, quality, suitability and demand, and only those
rated as qualified can be our approved suppliers. We
only purchase from the approved suppliers;

4.  We conduct follow-up assessment on the suppliers
and, if necessary, review them through a third party
organisation. When a supplier is found to be
inconsistent with the Company’s policy or contractual
requirements, the Company will cease future
cooperation until the situation has been improved;

5. In an unprejudiced way, we choose appropriate,
capable and responsible suppliers;

6. We support and encourage the suppliers to improve
the environmental-friendliness of their products and
services, and their employees’ benefits and
protection;

7. The suppliers must comply with the relevant laws,
regulations and contractual obligations; and

8. We adopt effective monitoring and management
systems to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other
misconducts in procurement and bidding processes.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B6. Policies on health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

Health and safety of products and services

We are committed to providing the customers with high-
quality products and services and settling customer
complaints effectively, continuously improving service level
and ensuring customer satisfaction. Accordingly, the
following measures are taken:

1. Make sure that the products and services comply with
related laws and standards;

2. Provide the customers with accurate product
information and high-quality products, and develop
return policy and after-sale service for related
products;

3. Take the initiative to explain the problem and find a
mutually satisfactory solution for the customers if there
is a problem with a product; and

4. Keep proper records after handling a customer’s
complaint and arrange the relevant department to
review the complaint and develop measures to
prevent the recurrence of similar complaints, so that
the Group’s service quality keeps improving.

Advertising, labelling and protection of customer
information

Customer information will only be used for specific
business purpose and not for other unrelated purposes. All
employees should handle and use customer information
with extreme caution, protect customer information, and
comply with the requirements under relevant laws and
regulations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
Production Safety Law of the PRC (FZE AR KEMEZ 2 4E
EEJK) and other relevant laws and regulations on health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy of products
and services in all material respects.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering

Ethics and integrity is the cornerstone of the Company’s
success. We adopt a zero tolerance approach to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. In their daily work,
the Directors, management and staff must comply with all
related national and local government laws and regulations
on prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. All employees not only have responsibility to
understand and comply with the above regulations on
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, but also have obligation to report violation to
the appropriate person. Any person, who contravenes the
regulations, will be subject to disciplinary sanction. We will
make every effort to protect the informer and the received
information. However, if an informer’s intention is to harm
others, they may be subject to disciplinary punishment.

1. Soliciting or accepting benefits

Any employee (including the Directors, management
and all full-time, part-time, hourly-paid and temporary
workers) of the Group cannot, directly, indirectly or in
any manner, solicit or accept any form of benefits
from a third party, including, but not limited to,
money, gift, excessive entertainment and hospitality,
subsidized travel and accommodation, loan, pledging
as guarantor, extending preferential credit terms, fee,
reward, position, employment, contract, service,
privilege and exemption of all or part of the
responsibilities that ought to be fulfilled or do anything
that might be seen as bribery. The employees should
reject any direct or indirect interests and benefits
relating to the Group’s business if such benefits would
hamper their objectivity, or the interests of the Group
would be harmed or invaded, or causing bias or
misconduct.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

1.

Soliciting or accepting benefits (Continued)
In social events such as festivals, activities,
entertainments and other daily routine, refusing to
accept a modest gift may be considered impolite or
lack of social graces. With that in mind, the
employees may consider accepting benefits offered on

a voluntary basis under the following principles:

a. Receiving such benefits will not affect his or her
performance and decision;

b. He or she will not feel the need to reciprocate;
and

c. He or she can openly discuss the benefits.

If the Group finds out any employee’s inappropriate
behaviour of soliciting or accepting benefits, it will call
the police and terminate the labour relations with such
employee.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

2.

Providing benefits

In any case, any employee shall not provide bribe or
improper benefits to any person or organisation in
order to seek personal gain or group interests. If the
Group finds out any employee conducting bribery, it
will call the police and terminate the labour relations
with such employee.

Extortion

Making any unwarranted demand by threat in order to
seek benefits for oneself or for another person or with
intent to cause loss to another person shall be
considered as extortion. All employees shall not
participate in, assist in or cover up any kind of
extortion. If the Group finds out any employee
conducting extortion, it will call the police and

terminate the labour relations with such employee.

Fraud

Using any means of deception in order to seek
benefits for oneself or for another person or with
intent to cause loss to another person shall be
considered fraud. Common employee fraud includes
embezzlement, wage fraud and stealing company
assets. All employees shall not participate in, assist in
or cover up any fraud. If the Group finds out any
employee conducting fraud, it will call the police and
terminate the labour relations with such employee.

Money Laundering

Money laundering refers to an individual or institution
attempting to conceal the source of illicit money, or
makes such money looks legitimate in any way. The
Group will not tolerate any employee’s participation,
support, and assistance in any form of money
laundering.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

5.

Money Laundering (Continued)

The Company should establish an anti-money
laundering team. General manager should be the team
leader and responsible for organising the anti-money
laundering team. The team’s main responsibilities
include organising and implementing anti-money
laundering tasks, investigating reported money
laundering, arranging anti-money laundering training,
working with regulatory and judiciary authorities to
investigate suspicious transactions of funds, as well as
paying attention to requirements and updates in anti-
money laundering laws and regulations.

Anti-money laundering procedures include identifying
clients, keeping transaction records, reporting and
following-up investigation of suspicious transactions,
and anti-money laundering training.

a.  Ildentifying clients

In dealing with new clients, salespeople must
establish a high degree of anti-money laundering
awareness, through communication with
prospective clients to comprehensively grasp the
clients’ information, thereby running the first
check on the clients. After successfully securing
the client, regular contact is required to grasp
the clients’ updates. If an abnormal situation
occurs, the sales person needs to timely
communicate with the relevant departments.

b.  Keeping transaction records

Salespeople and accounting personnel should
keep customer identification information, including
register customer identification and related
information, keep all sorts of records and
information reflecting payment authority’s
customer identification process, and keep
transaction records such as each transaction’s
information, business voucher, ledger and
necessary documents and other relevant
information to reflect the details of each
transaction to ensure that each transaction is
traceable.

—E-TEERE 25
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



R -HERESRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ZEEG s
B7. BHILERER - #h & - GERGEBENH
= s

5 R
c. HWERBEFEAELS

XBAERBIHABEE
WMAIRER 5 » BE RKWA
NABEREREZERE N
RS o REREBEE /N
HEMANRRGWMEY
&mx% EITHN - #

EEAEERRAZ
i%i%ﬁﬁ£%¥%~
R ER G R EAMEE
LREEEH gmES
BrliTRERNSEME
16 AR (JFIV) S HE R e rg 22
¥R o

d. RAEHEE
PRETIRZVEFHET
—IRREBEEI - B
NABEARENESE -
REBEER BIER
GRETIENAE - 1
E%Q%'JT%‘?’*% < R AT RE

RPBE - RETFTRER
AR AT REE AR RE o

BT RBARAR
FAAEECETHE

RHEMBE KL -
EARKAMBME - h 2
ARHKME kA E.Si%$
ERBRBER BR-
aF)SZ/%%éE’U/HJ‘MEE%&
BIRM

AR R HIER R A
76 EHERNEMEROEBRAT

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B7. Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering (Continued)

5.

Money Laundering (Continued)

C.

Reporting and following-up investigating of
suspicious transaction

For salespeople and accounting staff, should they
find out a suspicious transaction, they need to
report such transaction immediately to the
corporate headquarters’ anti-money laundering
team. The team analyses and investigates all
suspicious transactions reported, and if there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the
transaction or the customer has ties with money
laundering, terrorism and other criminal activities,
relevant authorities including the HKSAR
Government JFIU should be notified.

Anti-money laundering training

All employees should attend anti-money
laundering training at least once a year. The
training includes learning the harmful effects of
money laundering, anti-money laundering
regulations, the role of the employees in anti-
money laundering, how to identify suspicious
transactions, ways to report suspicious
transactions, and the consequences if one fails
to comply with anti-money laundering
regulations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the Year, the Group has complied with
the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC (#
#= AR LFMBE & EESE), the Criminal Law of the
PRC (##ZE AR HE B %), the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC (R & A R HFE &
TNIEE#HFESL) and other relevant laws and
regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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COMMUNITY

B8. Policies on community engagement to understand the

needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests

For the Group’s long-term development, community
participation is important. We are committed to promoting
the development and construction activities of the
community in which we operate. We benefit the community
through a variety of actions, such as investment and
contributing money, time, products, services, influence,
management knowledge and other resources.

We participate in community building through three main
ways:

1. Organise, facilitate and support the staff to take part
in volunteer services, such as regularly visiting people
who need help, arranging outdoor activities for
disadvantaged groups and holding Blood Donation
Day.

2. By means of donation, we donate money, goods or
services directly supporting or funding projects of
various social service agencies. In addition to donation
itself, we also appeal to the Company’s stakeholders
(including the employees and customers) to donate.

3.  We endeavour to provide employment opportunities to
the disadvantaged and create a win-win situation,
such as hiring the disabled people who have
completed retraining courses, giving priority to
purchasing from the suppliers who hire the disabled
people, or participating in a variety of mentorship
programs.
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The Group maintains an effective environmental management
system which was awarded an 1SO14001:2004 certificate by
Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center on 14 July 2010.
Furthermore, it has designed, established and implemented an
updated version of the QE management system in accordance
with 1SO14001:2015 in the second half of 2016. This updated
system passed the examination and evaluation of
ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and
was awarded a Certificate of Environmental Management System
Certification* (RREBEEEBRXREZRZE) (Certificate No.:
02016E30584R2M) by Beijing ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification
Center on 3 August 2017. This certificate confirmed that the
environmental management system of both the Group’s industrial
automatic integrated equipment design and manufacturing
business and general machinery components and parts
processing business complies with the Requirements and a
Practical Guide for an Environmental Management System* (3z3%
EIEERBRKNFHAERE) (GB/T24001-2016/1ISO14001:2015). In
October 2019, the Group obtained the certification for 1ISO45001
occupational health and safety management system from Beijing
ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center. The standard sets higher
requirements for quality control and operation model of an
enterprise by comprehensively regulating and improving its
occupational health and hygiene management, with the goal of
delivering the integrated economic benefits.

The Group strictly controls the emissions of waste and
greenhouse gas from its equipment production processes. It also
ensures that all emissions conform to the environmental quality
standards stipulated by the local governments of the regions
where the Group operates. Relevant laws, regulations and rules
include but are not limited to the PRC Environmental Protection
Law (FBIERIBIRF#E L), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (FF B A RS FHA5K), the
Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution (1 BI7K5245587%), the Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354 of the laws of Hong Kong) and Product Eco-
responsibility Ordinance (Cap. 603 of the laws of Hong Kong).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Air Emissions

Air pollutants also come from vehicles and generally include
nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur oxides (SO,) and respirable
suspended particles (RSP) (also known as particulate matter
(PM)). Relevant data for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 were as follows:

2019F12H31H
31 December 2019

2020FE12H31H
31 December 2020

AEILINO,)

Nitrogen oxides (NO,)

mE L (S0,)

Sulphur oxides (SO,)

F4 ¥ BRI (RSP)

Respirable suspended particles (RSP)
ERTARYEE

Air pollutants in total

i 2 B HER
BRERBRESEREEDY  PIWENHE
o KOHBMREBUARER - R=REH
Mg aE —albix R HEME = RE ()
IEKE(CH,) ~ BT AN0) - RERE
HMWM%mﬁﬁFLﬂmzxﬁlz

i AL REBA RSB IERA T
ZRERE - AEEBRNEAFEHTR
DIRGE N BE AR R TN E R &= IAE
ERERBAER

57,639.57 (32)
57,639.57 (grammes)

39,205.69 (72)
39,205.69 (grammes)

1,031.16 (52) 701.38 (52)
1,031.16 (grammes) 701.38 (grammes)
4,243.88 (7,) 2,886.63 (5%)

4,243.88 (grammes)
63,111.94 (52)
63,111.94 (grammes)

2,886.63 (grammes)
42,793.70 (5%2)
42,793.70 (grammes)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas comes from all sorts of daily activities, such as
the use of electricity, water and gas as well as driving. Total
greenhouse gas emissions include carbon dioxide and other
greenhouse gases, such as methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide
(N,O). The increase in greenhouse gas emission is one of the
major causes of global warming. In particular, carbon dioxide is
the principal greenhouse gas emitted from human activities. The
Group strives to reduce burning and improve energy and
resource use efficiency in its daily operation so as to manage its
greenhouse gas emissions.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 were as follows:

2019F12H31H 2020FE12H31H
31 December 2019 31 December 2020

HITERERE B B R 189,947.73 (F5) 129,199.99 (F5)

Direct emissions from combustion of fuels in motor 189,947.73 (kilogrammes) 129,199.99 (kilogrammes)
vehicles

BB N ARIEEE RS BB HE 308,565.71 (F32) 438,167.42 (T 52)

Indirect emissions from electricity purchased from 308,565.71 (kilogrammes) 438,167.42 (kilogrammes)
power companies

HEBFAMESNHEEHEN 3,457.87 (F7) 2,200.46 (F72)

Indirect emissions due to disposal of paper waste 3,457.87 (kilogrammes)  2,200.46 (kilogrammes)

1 BT KR IR A B BRI V5 /K BT 51 B R B HE AR 11,099.90 (F ) 10,591.00 (F52)

Indirect emissions due to sewage processing by 11,099.90 (kilogrammes) 10,591.00 (kilogrammes)
sewage processing companies

BERBEYNE 513,071.21 (F3%) 580,158.87 (F52)

Greenhouse gas emissions in total

SRR ER
AEBLEESHERERKR  A5EE
EEEEFK  £EFKEBBREESK
BEREEGBEIKEEBRARETHE—
BRIE - NEBEESKSFBBEHEK
ERRRRABR AT ARA - 2 %2020
F12A31 B IEFE - £)E5KNERE -
ITEFEE £LELFEEEHERBRTH
ERER o

%{\\ E-?i z 3 Iy NE=]
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513,071.21 (kilogrammes) 580,158.87 (kilogrammes)

Effluents Management

The production workshops of the Group do not require water
supply. The Group only produces domestic sewage that is
transmitted to EHHILKEIEBR AT for unified treatment
through sewage pipelines. The domestic sewage of the Group is
tested by #EiHEKERIRIERAAGR QA every year. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the potential of hydrogen (pH),
chemical oxygen demand (COD) and biochemical oxygen
demand (BOD) of the domestic sewage were all within required
limits.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste

In addition to the emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse
gas, the Group also produces hazardous waste from using paint
in its spraying and painting processes. The intensity of
hazardous waste produced for the year ended 31 December
2020 was 0.047 (2019: 0.0181).

Property Services Co., Ltd.*) to transport and handle its
domestic waste. As at 31 December 2020, the impact on the
environment was negligible with 1,080 bins of waste in total
being transported and handled (2019: 1,070). The intensity of
non-hazardous waste produced for the year ended 31
December 2020 was 4.05 (2019: 4.01).

The Group strived to the policies relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as set out in this ESG
report in the annual report in order to mitigate such pollution.
They contributed to a reduction on hazardous and non-
hazardous waste when compared to the last reporting period.

The information on hazardous and non-hazardous waste for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 were as follows:

2020%E12H31H
31 December 2020

20195 12H31H
31 December 2019

BEEEEY
Hazardous waste
mEEEY
Non-hazardous waste

EEGEREEREKESE
REBHEREEREEEIZAEEEH
FMEH B E2020F12A318 IHFE
FTEXEMEEREERE A173,875.96
(20194F : 122,446.71) °

REBRBKESETERETAESK - HE
2020F 12 AB1 B I FEMELNFEKE
[ /4&3,782.50 (20194 : 3,964.25) ©

11.30 (W) 19.65 ()
11.30 (tonnes) 19.65 (tonnes)
16.05 (1) 16.20 (W)

16.05 (tonnes) 16.20 (tonnes)

Indirect Energy and Water Consumption in Total

The daily indirect energy consumption of the Group mainly
comes from purchased electricity. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the intensity of energy consumption was
173,875.96 (2019: 122,446.71).

The total water consumption of the Group mainly consists of
domestic sewage. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
intensity of water consumption was 3,782.50 (2019: 3,964.25).

—E-TEERE 31
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Types of packaging material

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)

Indirect Energy and Water Consumption in Total (Continued)
The Group enjoys stable Water supply as it purchases water
from EEIFTHEKKER AT (Wuxi Waterworks Co., Ltd."), a
sizeable state-owned enterprlse.

The Group strived to adopt and implement the policies on the
efficient use of resources as set out in this ESG report in the
annual report in order to attain the goal of reducing energy and
water consumption. They contributed to a reduction in energy
and water consumption when compared to the last reporting
period.

Packaging Material Used for Finished Products

The Group properly packs its products according to the
requirements of the clients before delivery so as to prevent
damage during transportation. For the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020, the types and total packaging
material used were as follows:

20195 12H31H 2020E12H31H
31 December 2019 31 December 2020

N

Wood

BER(5)
Stretch film (wrap)

HZE2020F12831BILFEEMFERDE
2Rl 2 E 50.22 (20194 : 0.03) °

AEBREXEBLZHHRRERRAERL
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15.10 (W) 91.00 (&)
15.10 (tonne) 91.00 (tonne)
1.14 (18) 0.67 (1)
1.14 (tonne) 0.67 (tonne)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the intensity of
packaging material used was 0.22 (2019: 0.03).

The daily operation of the Group has no material impact on the
environment and natural resources. The Group will continue to
adopt and implement the policies on minimising its significant
impact on the environment and natural resources as set out in
this ESG report in the annual report in order to safeguard the
environment and natural resources.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Continued)

Health and Safety

The Group provides compensation to employees suffering from
work-related injuries or occupational illnesses in accordance with
the laws, rules and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC in
relation to the compensation for employment and occupational
illness, including the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.
282 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Standard of Compensation
for Work-Related Injuries of the PRC and the Regulation on
Work-Related Injury Insurance of the PRC. The Group may also
consider providing compensation beyond statutory requirements
to employees who are injured, die or suffer from occupational
illness at work. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group maintained good production safety with no major work-
related injury, accident or death.

The Group maintains all 5 major social security schemes, namely
retirement, medical, work-related injury, maternity and
unemployment insurance, as well as housing provident fund for
all of its employees with 100% participation rate in strict
compliance with national laws and regulations. It also makes full
and punctual payments to these social security schemes and
provident fund. The Group implements standard working hours
of 40 hours per week in strict compliance with the working-hour
and rest-time requirements under the Labour Law of the PRC
(hEE AR AMBE L E)E). Holidays are provided during national
holidays according to statutory requirements while substitute
holidays or overtime payments are granted in accordance with
the regulations if an employee is required to work on statutory
holidays or work overtime. Employees’ legal right to paid-leave is
fully protected in strict compliance with the laws of the PRC.
The Group offers entrance, on-the-job and exit occupational
health checks to employees who are exposed to occupational
health hazards in accordance with the Technical Specifications
for Occupational Health Surveillance (B 3 i 5 B2 & B 1T 48 #0)
(GBZ188-2014), and removes employees who are found in the
checks to have occupational illnesses from their original
positions.

* For identification purposes only

—E-TEERE 33
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The Directors are pleased to present this report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the PRC and has its principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suite 2703, 27th Floor, Shui
On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Group’s registered office and its principal place of business in
the PRC are situated at 1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic
Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are research and
development, design, manufacture, equipment supply,
installation, testing, repair and maintenance of production lines
for manufacturing steel wire products in the PRC. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Five-
Year Financial Summary of this annual report and the
paragraphs below.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance. No important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year to the
date of this annual report.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY RISK FACTORS

Set out below are the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is subject to government
policy, and relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension
of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and
markets as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of
such changes.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in
some parts of its business to improve performance and
efficiency of the Group. While gaining the benefits from external
service providers, the management realises that such operational
dependency may pose a threat of vulnerability to unexpected
poor or lapses in service including reputation damage, business
disruption and monetary losses. To address such uncertainties,
the Group engages only reputable third-party service providers
and closely monitors their performance.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer
to the Prospectus.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual
needs. The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all
employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace
accidents are found during the Year.

The Group places great emphasis on working relationships with
suppliers to meet our customers’ needs in an effective and
efficient manner. Our departments work closely with our
suppliers to make sure the tendering and procurement process
is conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s
requirements and standards are also well-communicated to
suppliers before the commencement of a project.

—E-TEERE 85
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The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analysis on customer feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only
quality products and services are offered to the customers.

The Group is an integrated production solution provider of steel
wire products in the PRC. We provide customised and
distinctive solutions to steel wire product manufacturers in
accordance with their production needs and specifications. As
such, we can provide one-stop service including undertaking the
construction of comprehensive production lines (scope of work
covering technical design, equipment supply, installation and
fine-tuning and testing of the production lines), repair and
maintenance or replacement of certain parts within their existing
production lines or supply of equipment and machines on a
standalone basis to upgrade their existing production lines.

The Group has, on average, over 3 to 5 years of business
relationship with the key suppliers, which are mainly located in
Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang and Shandong in Eastern China as
well as Henan in Central China. The suppliers mainly
manufacture customised parts and components and electrical
units according to specific designs. Our largest supplier mainly
provides customised parts and components according to
specific designs and is located in Jiangsu in Eastern China. In
general, suppliers grant a payment term of 30-90 days.
Payables are usually settled by electronic remittance or
commercial bill of exchange within the credit period.

The Group’s key products are customised in accordance with
production needs and specifications. The quality of the parts and
components provided by the supplies are vital. The Group has
formulated the Supplier Management System* ({t & & & 12 %I &)
and the Supplier Certification and Assessment Management
System* (EHREEZEEE) to assess, manage and
control the suppliers and ensure that the products procured by
the Group satisfy its requirement. The Group continuously
monitors the qualified suppliers to ensure the long-term and
stable supply of satisfactory products and services from them.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any material
contractual dispute with its suppliers.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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The Group treasures customers’ opinions and advice, which are
collected in various forms through several channels to
understand the customers’ preferences and needs. It also
regularly analyses the feedback and opinions of the customers
so as to develop new products and provide quality services in
accordance with their needs.

The Group’s customers include several leading steel wire
product manufacturers in the PRC. According to our track
records, our key customers included companies listed on the
Stock Exchange, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Apart from domestic sales, the
Group also exports its products. Our sales contracts usually
provide for a product delivery date of about five to nine months
from the contract signing date. The relatively long manufacturing
cycle is primarily attributed to the time required for product
design and manufacturing, delivery, on-site installation, fine-
tuning, testing and trial production.

The Group has, on average, over 5 years of business
relationship with the key customers. It offers different credit
terms to the customers according to its assessment of their
business scales and financial positions. According to the average
number of days for receipt of payments, and the average
number of days spent on different stages of its business models
adopted for the major production lines and standalone
machines, the payment terms granted by the Group to its
customers requires (i) receipt of 20% to 30% of contract value
within 90 days from the contract signing date, (i) receipt of
30% to 40% of contract value upon completion of production,
(iii) receipt of 20% to 40% of contract value upon completion of
installation, fine-tuning and testing, and (iv) receipt of quality
warranty payment (10%) within one year. The Group
continuously monitors and controls the accounts receivable from
its customers.

During the reporting period, the Group did not suffer from any
material business loss due to material delinquency or default by
its customers with financial difficulties.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five
largest customers accounted for 50.3% (2019: 75.6%) and
92.0% (2019: 92.6%), respectively, of the Group’s total revenue
for the Year.
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During the Year, aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest
and five largest suppliers accounted for 11.6% (2019: 13.1%)
and 28.4% (2019: 37.2%), respectively, of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
(who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers, raw material suppliers and
subcontractors during the Year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 188
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of the
Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 187 of
this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the
Year and material factors underlying its results and financial
position are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the distributable reserves of the
Company were RMB465.0 million (2019: RMB473.9 million).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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DIVIDEND

For the Year, the Board has proposed a final dividend of
RMBO0.05 per share (before tax) totaling RMB6.4 million (before
tax), subject to approval by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 18 June
2021 (the “AGM”). The final dividend, if approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM, will be paid to the Shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 30 June 2021. Dividends payable to
the holders of the Company’s domestic shares shall be paid in
RMB, whereas dividends payable to the holders of the
Company’s H shares shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars.
Dividends on H share are also subject to PRC Withholding
Income Tax. It is expected that the final dividend will be payable
on or around Friday, 16 July 2021 and a detailed plan of
distribution will be set out in the circular of the Company to be
despatched on 29 April 2021.

TAX REDUCTION AND EXEMPTION
(FOR H SHAREHOLDERS)

Non-resident enterprise shareholders

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (FFZE A
ERAME M ZEFSFIE) and its implementation rules, which came
into force on 1 January 2008 and other relevant rules, where the
Company distributes the proposed 2019 final dividend to non-
resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members for H Shares of the Company, it is required
to withhold enterprise income tax at the rate of 10%. Any H
Shares registered in the name of non-individual registered
shareholders, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other
nominees, trustees or other organisations or groups, will be
treated as Shares being held by non-resident enterprise
shareholders, and consequently will be subject to the
withholding of the enterprise income tax.

—E-TEERE 39
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Non-resident individual shareholders

According to regulations by the State Administration of Taxation
(Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348) and relevant laws and
regulations, if the individual H Share shareholders are residents
of Hong Kong or Macau or those countries which have entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of
10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of these shareholders.
If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will make applications on their behalf to seek entitlement of the
relevant agreed preferential treatments pursuant to the relevant
tax treaty. If the individual H Share shareholders are residents of
those countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less
than 20%, the Company will withhold and pay individual income
tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty. If
the individual H Share shareholders are residents of those
countries which have entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20%, or those countries which
have not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, or under
any other circumstances, the Company will withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of these
shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 18 May 2021 to Friday, 18 June 2021, both dates
inclusive, the period during which no transfer of shares will be
effected. The holders of shares whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 18 June 2021
will be entitled to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM to be held
on Friday, 18 June 2021. In order to be qualified to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the H Share
Registrar of the Company, Union Registrars Limited at Suites
3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s
Road, North Point, Hong Kong (in respect of H shares), or to the
Company’s registered office in the PRC at 1 Yanxin Road East,
Huishan Economic Development Zone, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC (in respect of Domestic shares) no later than 4:00 p.m.
on Monday, 17 May 2021.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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To ascertain the entitlement of receiving the final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 24 June 2021 to Wednesday, 30 June 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be qualified for receiving the final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the H Share Registrar of the Company, Union Registrars
Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong (in respect of
H shares), or to the Company’s registered office in the PRC at
1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic Development Zone,
Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (in respect of Domestic shares)
no later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 June 2021.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no bank borrowings
(2019: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float under the Listing Rules during the Year and
up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it
to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion
to their shareholdings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period up to
the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The following table sets forth information concerning the
Directors and supervisors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

#a i B i EZEHH
Name Age Position Appointment Date
X

Directors

SR 12 Ml 5% & 48 HITEERIE 201247 A24H
Mr. ZHANG Degang Executive Director and Chairman 24 July 2012
REREE 51 MITEERELE 201247 H24H
Mr. ZHANG Degiang Executive Director and general manager 24 July 2012
REFELL 58 ERNTES 201568 A28H
Ms. ZHANG Jinghua Non-executive Director 28 August 2015
mIELE 53 FHRTES 201247 A24H
Mr. GAO Feng Non-executive Director 24 July 2012
BAREE 55 BAUFNTES 201247 A24H
Mr. LIU Chaojian Independent non-executive Director 24 July 2012
mBETEE 57 BAFRTER 2013F8A11H
Mr. GAO Fuping Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
AR AEE 49 BUFNTES 20138 A11H
Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
ZmiesE 57 B 201448 H15H
Mr. PENG Jiashan Supervisor 15 August 2014
BELL 51 EE 201448 H15H
Ms. WEI Yi Supervisor 15 August 2014
BRELL 39 EERATNEBILE 201297 H24R

Ms. YANG Jinghua

ARBIEEESE L FATESFRIEL™
MAIEIABGH R FH LM H O FE
RE URAERBUFNTESTYEL
RARTA e

AR R IER IR A
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Supervisor and personnel and general affairs manager 24 July 2012

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent of the Company.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 20 to 30 of
this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Except for Ms. Zhang Jinghua’s service contract which was
entered into on 28 August 2015, each of the Directors and
supervisors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 24 October 2014 and 20 October 2014,
respectively, and such service contracts will continue to be
effective upon re-election. Hence, each of their service contracts
is continued to be effective pursuant to the re-election of the
Directors at the annual general meeting held on 8 June 2018.
The service contracts may be terminated in accordance with the
terms of the service contracts.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has or is
proposed to have a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by such member of the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors of
the Company are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid employees
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DETAILS OF OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any share
option scheme in force.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such indemnity provisions for the benefit of
the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the Year.

DONATIONS
No donation was made during the Year (2019: nil).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which will have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, will be as follows:

(i) Interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company

16 HE B R
BRAB#4
BoLLREY (FERTRE
Approximate  ZEEHEL
percentage  H %tk MED
in the Approximate
relevant percentage
RH&E class of in the total
ESna R ER Number #EZ1EE share issued share
Name of Director Class of shares of shares Nature of interest capital MNote)  capital Mete !
SRIEMIEE RNE K 43,221,504 Em#EAA 45.02% 33.77%
Mr. Zhang Degang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NE MK 34,010,496 HEEM AL HFFAER T 35.43% 26.57%
Domestic Shares Interest held jointly with another person (ot 2
W& 4,416,000 BN IE il A B 6 i 2 (0ES) 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation Mete
REBREL NE K 29,983,104 Em#AA 31.23% 23.42%
Mr. Zhang Degiang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NE MK 47,248,896 EEf AT HFFAHER T 49.22% 36.92%
Domestic Shares Interest held jointly with another person (o2
W& 4,416,000 BN IE il A B 6 i 2 (0S) 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation Mete
REEELZ T NE KR 4,027,392 Em#EBA 4.20% 3.15%
Ms. Zhang Jinghua Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NE MK 77,620,608 EEE i A+ HFRA EER 12 80.85% 60.64%
Domestic Shares Interest held jointly with another person (o2
—E_EEERE
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(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 128,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020, which
comprised 96,000,000 domestic shares and 32,000,000 H shares.

2 Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Deqiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua are
persons acting in concert and accordingly each of them is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by each other. By the Acting in Concert
Agreement dated 26 July 2013, each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang
Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua confirmed that they have exercised their
voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and/or directors of the
members of the Group in unanimity since the establishment of Sanzhi
Gongkong on 17 April 2009, and will continue to do so.

Q) Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang are two of the general partners
of EIFIBMTLELE(ERSHE) (Wuxi Shunxin Investment Enterprise
(Limited Partnership)*) (“Shunxin”) and are therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Shunxin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2020, no
persons or corporations (other then the Directors, chief executive
or supervisors of the Company) had or deemed or taken to have
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was
a party, and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with any of them had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, there had been no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor any contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries. None of the shareholders of the Company entered
into any arrangement to waive or agree to waive any dividend.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, the controling shareholders of the
Company and their respective close associates had any
business or interest that competes or may compete with the
business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor had any
other conflicts of interest with the Group during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua (the controlling shareholders (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) of the Company) has given an annual declaration
to the Company confirming that he/she has complied with the
non-compete undertakings given by them to the Company under
the deed of non-competition made on 11 March 2014 in favour
of the Company. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the non-
compete undertakings and confirmed that all the undertakings
thereunder have been complied with during the Year.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director
or supervisors of the Company, or were such rights exercised by
them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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EFEEHRE

Report of the Directors

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the
Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions during the Year are set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements and these
transactions do not fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Listing
Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction(s) or continuing connected transaction(s) under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Company during the
Year.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.
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EFERE
Report of the Directors

BEXEST AUDIT COMMITTEE

EEgRE TNEZZESCHETEE R The audit committee of the Board has reviewed with the
EHNASEMRAN ST RALRER - I management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
AREZ B RERS RREELA the Group and discussed auditing, financial reporting systems,

HEEmRs  WEMASEFANEGE M risk management and internal control systems, and has reviewed
e the Group’s consolidated financial results for the Year.
= BB AUDITOR

FANGETEREREBEEHES The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
BEBTEZ  EBRITIFEER KA audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who shall retire and, being

EEXBE BRRAFAELHRE—A eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
REER NEBEEERKESTAESAT re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
BN B ZERED o Company is to be proposed at the AGM.
AEEEMm By order of the Board
EEBENERBFBRBAERAT EGBENERBTBRBAERAT
*E (Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited*)
SR Zhang Degang
Chairman

T & 0 20213 H26H Jiangsu, the PRC, 26 March 2021
* EBHHEF * For identification purposes only

PR NER % 4 NE

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

kA

To the Shareholders of Wuxi Sunlit Science and
Technology Company Limited

(a joint stock company incorporated in People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wuxi Sunlit Science and
Technology Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 109 to 187, which
comprise:

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;
° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

—E-TEERE 101
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



BB AR E (88)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
of accounts receivable.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Impairment of accounts receivable

F2RREMBREME3 D) [HERRER
— ERER] - HE40) [ ARG K&
KHEE191 B 5 K H th e Y sk | -

Refer to note 3.1(b) “Financial risk
management — credit risk”, note 4(b) “Critical
accounting estimates and judgments” and
note 19 “Trade and other receivables” to the
consolidated financial statements.

20205124318 - EUER R A AKRK190.6
BEL MEERARK4.0BET FHE
HFEERARKIM6BEL & EEER
2020512 A31 B EE/18.9% °

As at 31 December 2020, the accounts
receivable amounted to RMB190.6 million and
provision amounted to RMB49.0 million,
resulting in the net carrying amount of
RMB141.6 million and representing 18.9% of
the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2020.

EEERAM AT ERKRRN S HELE
FERX - EEENKFEERLRERER
HEOE UFERHEEREL - EBEAR
HEHRRRERERENMATEESREE
BE  UIMELBBRRLERRESE N
N AERELHE ZEZZOBETLNAE
AHEELE FETR UBRARZEHER
HENNEpAXZ EEEEETHRBREER
KHBRT - MEBAIEEAE -
Management applied the simplified approach
to measure the lifetime expected credit losses
of accounts receivable. To measure the
expected credit losses (“ECL”), customers of
the Group were grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. Management
assessed the ECL based on estimation about
risk of default and expected loss rates, and
judgment was used in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, including the historical
settlement records, credit ratings, financial
positions of the customers and other factors
that impacted their ability of repayment.
Management also took into account of forward
looking adjustments to determine ECL.

BWIEBENIR & (88)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

EMRSE TR ERREN SR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BN EREBRG T RURFURET L MITTATERF
We obtained the assessment of impairment of accounts receivable from
the management and performed the following procedures:

1)

THREREYRERSEREERROAMZES RFT-HRE - I
EZRMTTIREUENEE REME S REREZHKFE (Flan kA
BRNEMEE BREXERBEN B THERERR
e E B R

Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of ECL of accounts receivable, and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity of models, subjectivity of key
assumptions and data used.

AEYRAHERERFEEZREFBRBEERRAIENBR
R BREEHERRA T

Evaluated and tested management’s key controls in relation to the
assessment of the ECL of trade receivables, including the review
of ageing analysis.

AEEREEREEEREOERERRR RSB R ERRAETHE
IWERFRBEERRBEBERERERE -

Assessed the appropriateness of the grouping of accounts
receivable based on shared credit risk characteristics and ageing
periods and the credit loss provisioning methodology adopted by
management.

ERtHesRAMmEEXY  mEARAEREREMNELR
RN T R

Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the aging profile of
accounts receivable prepared by management by checking to
sales invoices or other relevant documents.

ERERTKE BERATFNELEEMRN
Tested, on a sample basis, the historical settlement of the
customers by checking to the bank slips.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

st EE
Key Audit Matter
FE Uz AR = i (B

Impairment of accounts receivable

KO A E - BE R AHEERRR R
B BARMEEREERANEREM 1
FHEABRREAHBRTES FTBEE -
We focused on this area due to the
significance of the accounts receivable
balances and the complexity of models and
subjectivity of significant assumptions and data
used in the estimation of ECL.

ﬁ{\\ Dﬁg \z: L AL /‘\E

EMRSE TR ERREN SR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EREREEHENRRLERGEERARNME  EP2ERP
CEEH (BREBELS MBRAREREN)  UHERED
M EAFASENREEEEZE -

Challenged management’s estimation of the risk of default and ECL
rate referencing to customers’ credit information including
settlement records, their financial positions and ability of
repayment and collaborated management’s explanations with
publicly available information and supporting evidence.

AEAEEEHRERE  ER2ERMAMANERABHEER
HOEBZBREBEE

Evaluated the appropriateness of the forward looking information
with reference to our industry knowledge and relevant published
macroeconomic data.

BEFERAGERRBENEMERE -
Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
allowance of ECL.

EEAPﬁL”E’JttEF&PﬁE@Z/EE’Jﬁﬁ'&1 ARA BEEERTEER

FORER N A BB

Based on above procedures performed and the evidence obtained, we
considered that the judgement made by management in the
assessment of the impairment of accounts receivable was supported by
available evidences.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BWIEBENIR & (88)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020 105



BB AR E (88)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BRHMR B EEMBRRAED
BfE

BPNER EUGEAVBEHRREBRS
NFEARRFFRERMETMNE NG R
ARG AREER  YHABRERMER
MZBE RS - HfIER BTUESE
B)MERMNER - BRI 2 AH S5
EEMEN - LA TERARENATMR
ERIEMATE ESABEEREE - 58
EXTRKTNEE  BETRFRERR(E
BEEADETHERN  EX —EKXE
AR F A R AR BE B IR - SRARPRAL A A
HFF iR  MREEBHAEMES
SERERAEFEFEYBHRRERE
REAR A WIS SRR P E BV EDR E - A
BRANERRATTRRIEEA -

RIBCERB BT ERDETEANEBES
LFIERTEEHE  REFTHEXRMRRE
JE o BIT%

o FHRIFFHEBNEFF IR R M B B4R
EMBHMRFEEANHERRADN R
% Rt RMITEA T ARHEL
Rk - A NIEERGE R AEE WERTR
& ERRMABENER - ARG
ARESNER  BE ERERE
RER - SERBAENES 2 £ - Eit
RERRARFMEHMEXTERR
e [ e 1= I R RE B3R R SR RR T B 2
M B X RRA AR -

o HRRERFTABAAIMES - ARE
BENESIET BENLEY B
SEAN

o HEEEMRASHERNREER
{ER T AT AR EN SN -

ﬁ{\\ Dﬁg z S L AL /‘\E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BWIEBENIR & (88)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pang, Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Income Statement

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HZ12A1BLEE
Year ended 31 December
B 20194
Note 2019
A Revenue 5 134,757
SHE KA Cost of sales 6 (104,177)
EH Gross profit 30,580
HEM X Selling expenses 6 (4,799)
THRAX Administrative expenses 6 (35,923)
SRIBEREEEREIFE Net reversal of impairment losses 6
on financial assets 10,496
EH A Other income 7 1,245
Hib (E518), s — F% Other (losses)/gains — net 8 5,256
B (BE) E Operating (loss)/profit 6,855
3 ON Finance income 10 4,204
B BT 15 Bt 5y #1 8 Profit before income tax 11,059
FTE i Income tax expense 11 (2,980)
EATIHERBREEN Profit for the year attributable
FERFE to equity shareholders of
the Company 8,079
ERNFATELIRHEEIE Earnings per share attributable
SEREF(LESKRARYE to equity shareholders of
FTIIR) the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
— EXKk#EE — Basic and diluted 12 0.06
LA &R & U i 75 8 B B P BT 2 — OF BAGE o The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

#E12A31BLLFEE
Year ended 31 December

20194

2019

ERFE Profit for the year 8,079

Hih 2 Y5 Other comprehensive income =
AATI LSRR ELER Total comprehensive income for
2EKRiEE the year attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 8,079

LA E 4R & 2 T Wi a5 3% 68 BT B 5% — OF B2 The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
B o should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

110 EEBRNENBEROBERAT
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B 5
Note

BE
kRBEAE
EREEE

WE - BEERB
BEME
BREE

H & U SOR

EXFSHREE — FE

RBEE

Ea

FIEHEME

B FRIR

B 5 I H K ROR
TESmTE
BRFEFARSEDN
TREE
BRHIRE
BHIER
RekReFEEAR

waE

g
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e tn i (B
feéi 178
R &7

MR

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Other receivables

Deferred income tax assets — net

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Prepayments

Trade and other receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Restricted cash

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

13
14
15
16
19
20

21
22
24
19

23

25
25
25

26
26
28
27

Y

BABEREE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

®12A318
As at 31 December

20194
2019

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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88,5611
57,254
2,428
196,725

745,611

631,281

23,044
97,838
22,148
78
1,993
12,977

158,078

30,440
24,290
125,407
62,478

587,533

128,000
311,464

66,886
124,931
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

(RIESBEH  BRIMEEHBAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

Bff

mEBAE

B 5 K E A R 50R
BMAaRE

¥RBEE

waR

MESRAR

PAEAR A B E B B R MR HEBE R P & — 57 59

g °

F109E 188 H MR & B %5 3k & B 722021
FIA6HEEESHE WHIULTAL

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

®12A318
As at 31 December
B 7E 20194
Note 2019
29 72,573
5(a) 41,757
114,330
114,330
745,611

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

and were signed on its behalf by:

EHZMNE Name of Director Name of Director

RERRE -
EFHE
112 BBBENENZRGERA A

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

in

The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 188
were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(RIESBEH  TRMEEHBAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

EATHE NEW
Attributable to owners of the Company
BEx BRHiEE f#iE RBEWN szt
Share Retained
premium  Reserves earnings Total

®20195F1 A1 B & Balance at 1 January 2019 311,464 65,707 124,431 629,602
2w Comprehensive income
FAFE Profit for the year - - 8,079 8,079
2SR Total comprehensive income = = 8,079 8,079
HBBEFEANRS Transaction with owners
EREL2ES Transfer to safety fund = 1,179 (1,179 =
BIRFTRE Dividend paid - = (6,400) (6,400)
HEFANZSEE Total transactions with owners = 1,179 (7,579) (6,400)
2019512 A 31 B Y & 63 Balance at 31 December 2019 311,464 66,886 124,931 631,281
1202041 A1 B &8 Balance at 1 January 2020 311,464 66,886 124,931 631,281
2mEikE Comprehensive income
FERNFE Profit for the year
E2Elg IS Total comprehensive income
HBEFANRS Transaction with owners
HAELEES Use of safety fund
HEBAANR ZEE Total transactions with owners
#2020 12A31BEY4EE  Balance at 31 December 2020

PA L7 & wE ot B B 3R 8 BERE P P 7 — GBI
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The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(RIESBEH  BRIMEEHBAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE12A31HILLEE

Year ended 31 December

20194
2019

B 5
Note
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Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash used in operations

Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating
activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Increase in restricted cash

Decrease in time deposits

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities
Dividends paid

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

31(a) (69,179)

(1,537)

(70,716)

(7,510)
31(b)

23
(336,500)

340,190

6,957

3,160

30 (6,400)
(73,956)
1,613

134,821

62,478

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

EEBRNENBEROBERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1 FREH—-KREH
mBBNERBRNERAR ((ARE])
RAKBRR (SB[ AEE]) HEBEDS
REERHE — RO BRI S EEROR
f# -

ANRNFABR2006FE3 21 BEFEART
MB(HER])FMAIHEREETRAR -
201267 A248 » A AR R+ HAERE
ERRERLHBRMDBR AT o AR F]
AP =R AT BT &S EHE L
KERBEERREIR

MR2014F11A11H  KRARIRNDETE
BAEXSHAERAR ([BERAT]) ER L
ﬁo

BRIEREFER  BARGEMBHRRIAA
RETIT27 -

RATESZSEMN20214E3 H26 8 # 4 T2
NN B B

2 FEEITBERHE

RAEAGAEVBRRFEAN RS
RENTX -BRIFEREER  BAZRFR
RRNFIE2HRTEERER -

21 RBEE
AEBMNGAVERREBEFMEEBN
BEAVBHRELENRE - REFBEHREE
ERESKAEFRE - IRIZRFER
AEafemEE (RAFESIR) ERE
7 °

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of a range of
equipment for steel wire production lines.

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) as a limited liability company on 21 March
2006. The Company was converted into a joint stock company
with limited liabilities under relevant PRC laws and regulations on
24 July 2012. The address of the Company’s registered office is
1 Yanxin Road East, Huishan Economic Development Zone,
Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 11 November 2014.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi thousands (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 26 March
2021.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the vyears
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

—ECDFERS 115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 FEEFBREE®
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

(a) New standards and amendments and interpretation to
standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards and

amendments and interpretation to standards for the first time for

the Group’s financial year commencing 1 January 2020.

Standards/Amendments/

Interpretation Subject

FEMBEREEN LR XHBHNES
(&%)

FETENEIRNR BEANES
BB G ERE8HR

(1B
2018 BHMER S KEFTUBHRSE
HEZR B HESR
BB R E %R M REERE

275 BEMBRE
ERIEORRE SR
885399 (1580

BRNFNAT R R B AR & I & 1 4
BEARE-

ﬁ{\\ E-?i \z: L AL /‘\E

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

Definition of Material

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The adoption of the new standards and amendments does not
have significant impact on the consolidated financial information.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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FEUMBRRME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments and interpretation to
standards that have been issued but are not effective

The following new standards and amendments and interpretation

to standards have been issued but are not effective for the

financial year beginning 1 January 2020 and have not been early

adopted by the Group:

RTI B8 ZE
FIEBIEEERN
Effective for annual
years beginning on

Interpretation Subject or after
ERMBREERNFE175R Rz & 4 20231 /1A
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
ER T ERE15 (B2 KRB EA/RBDNIERY 202351 A1H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023
BB REZE5 (20204 ) 2 BHEK — ERARBERER A 20231 /1A
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification 1 January 2023
(2020) by the Borrower of a Team loan
BB ERFE8FAE N BRHAFTNER 20231 A1H
Amendments to HKAS8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
FEMBHREERNEIN (B2 HHIERNRML 20221 A1H
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BT EAE 165 (B2 WX - BERRE  (ERTERBEANMSHE 20221 A1 A
HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds Before 1 January 2022
Intended Use
“EREERS
TR 117
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 FEEHHEREBE® 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
21 REEEH 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) ERE#M 1B faf k£ B9 #F 5T 8 Bl Ll & (b) New standards and amendments and interpretation to
ERIRIIEX RZEFE (7) standards that have been issued but are not effective
(Continueq)
RTI B8 ZE
A 8RB i FIEBIEEERN
Effective for annual
Standards/Amendments/ years beginning on
Interpretation Subject or after
ERGERFEITH (BR) BEEH — BITaKKA 202241 A1H
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 1 January 2022
FEUE & 78 B 1 5 YE RI| 2018 6 = 2020 4F [ B F J& 2 202251 A1H
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 1 January 2022

2018-2020 Cycle

KIEFT 85151 FE55% HEEGE NS HETEE 2022F1 A1H

Revised Accounting Merger Accounting for Common Control Combination 1 January 2022
Guideline 5

BRI B REERFE165% COVID-19/HH 2B = 202066 A1H
(f&250)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020

N

EBUBHELASI0RE BELZRABLATNRALOEMHEELERRA BEER
&b & 1285085 (152%)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor  To be determined
(Amendments) and its Associate or Joint Venture

REB B FRF G Lt F T ERI LA K2R The Group has already commenced an assessment of the

MIEEREZRENTE  EPETHBHER impact of the above new standards and amendments and

SENEERM - RBRAEEESHIEN interpretations to standards, certain of which are relevant to the

Y E - TREA Lt ¥ AT 2R Bl LA K 22 R Ay Group’s operations. According to the preliminary assessment

BRERZREERETSHARENKLEE made by the directors of the Group, it is expected that the

BHIMBRABREARTE - above new standards and amendments and interpretations to
standards will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
operating results or financial position when they become
effective.

118 BERNENEBROBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns

from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. The
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

—ECDFERS 119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the

acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling

interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests

and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s

net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair

value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in

the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

All other components of non-controlling interests are measured

at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement

basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any

retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at

the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying

amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial

carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for

the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial

asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted

for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had

directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This means

that certain amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income may be reclassified to profit or loss.

222 Separate financial statements

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.

—ECDFERS 121
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



FEMBRRME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the entities

within the Group are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the

“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are

presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s

functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated income statement within finance
expense. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “other
(losses)/gains — net”.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 10 years
Vehicles 4 years
Computer and electronic equipment 3-5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Interior decoration 5 years

Except for the residual values rate of interior decoration which is
zero, the residual values rate of other property, plant and
equipment are 5%.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains — net” in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Historical expenditure that
is directly attributable to the construction comprises construction
costs, the cost of plant and machinery and applicable borrowing
costs incurred during the construction period. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment categories and
depreciated in accordance with the policy mentioned above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Investment property
Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties that are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Investment
properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, at rates
sufficient to write off their costs over their estimated useful lives
of 20 to 50 vyears. The residual values and useful lives of
investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate
at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are
included in the consolidated income statement when the
changes arise.

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, which are
amortised over their estimated useful lives not exceeding five
years.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (OCI) or through profit
or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

2.9.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its

fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction

costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss (FVPL) are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



2 FEEFBREE®

29 BERHEMEMEE (&)

293 f1E(#)

EHETAE)

s RRATEHAHMEEKZ : HH E
WARWIRREAE EFEMNRBE
Eﬁim%&kﬁ%i\ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬂ’]ﬁ??“
FEF AHEM K - TR
Bt A2 - VE/)WEWTST&BZ
B8 - R B R E s s B R
REWRKRER RRIEERESFHE
ER  UEREAZHKEERHR
aJrJ%Z TN EEHERENORER

CWRERE W ER R P R H b e
(Eﬁ?ﬁ)ﬁ@au ZEERMEENT S
AT A BB F R A BWA o

o  RAFVEFAEZ AAREHEK
At ESRAFEFARLMEEKE
RIFMEER A FER AR - HR
BRHER AR ERK R E RS
FEBENGE RS RER - WIRFRR
SIAEEMRE e (B8) -

T A
NE lﬁ{é?ﬁ/&i@#gﬁﬁﬁﬁé T Ho

EASEEREEEENEMEEKEZT
%*Iﬂﬁ’]”zﬁéﬂﬁzﬁn&ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ CHREAD

ERRIEARERE A FEREREE
i%ﬁ DRERE o BAKEUEUT A2
MRS - ARARENREBEENGRS WK

BARERBREMLA -
BRAFEFAABENEREELTESR

RiFaaERPOEMIKRE (B18) (anE
F)RER - MAFEF ARG ZE KR
REREMRERR (CRERBEER) T
SHEMAFEEHIRE2H -

FEUMBRRME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

2.9.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest,
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in the consolidated income
statement as other gains/(losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.

are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated income statement and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
the consolidated income statement as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are
not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
2.9.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates derivatives as either:

° hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
(fair value hedges).

° hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows
of recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable
forecast transactions (cash flow hedges).

° hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net
investment hedges).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

At the inception of the hedging, The Group documents the

economic, relationship between hedging instruments and hedged

items, including whether changes in the cash flows of the

hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash

flows of hedged items. The Group documents its risk

management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedge

transactions.

Derivatives held by the Group are only used for economic
hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. If the
derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in
note 3.3.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.12 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of properties comprises acquisition costs
attributable to the properties. Net realisable value is determined
taking into account the selling price expected to be realised, less
applicable estimated selling expenses to make the sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at
fair value. Trade and other receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

When the terms of trade and other receivables that would
otherwise be past due or impaired have been renegotiated,
trade and other receivables are remeasured using the revised
effective interest method determined according to the
renegotiated terms and conditions. Any difference between the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables before and after
the renegotiation is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs

directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
HKAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense. Warranty provision mainly represents the estimation
cost of providing maintenance services as well as the
replacement of accessories in connection with the quality
warranty based on past experience.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and value-added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below.
The Group bases its estimates on historical experience, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specification of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of a
range of equipment for steel wire production lines and
standalone machineries. Revenue from sales of equipment is
recognised when the control of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually upon (1) delivery of products
to the customer; (2) completion of the installation and on-site
testing (if required in the sale contract); and (3) the acceptance
by the customer of the equipment without any further unfulfilled
obligation. The Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms is recognised as a
provision, see note 29.

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) Income from trading

Income from trading belongs to contract obligations to be

satisfied at a point in time and the corresponding income is

recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the

buyer.

The Group distinguishes whether the Group is a principal or an
agent in the transactions regarding whether the Group has the
control of goods when transferring the goods to the customer.
Provided that the Group has the control of goods before the
transfer of the goods, it is acting as a principal and should
recognise revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for the specified goods
transferred; otherwise it is acting as an agent and should
recognise revenue in the amount of any fee or commission. The
Group is acting as an agent and recognizes the agent business
income in net amount.

(d) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods of services
to the customers and payment by the customer exceeds one
year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

(e) Contract asset and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer and
assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide
services to the customer. The combination of those rights and
performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining rights and
the performance obligations. The contract is an asset and
recognised as contract assets if the measure of the remaining
rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance
obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability and recognised
as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining
performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining
rights. The contract asset of the Group is only composed of
transportation fees occurred from sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans and
receivables are recognised using the original effective interest
rate.

2.22 Leases

Where the Group is a lessee, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Assets
and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments (where applicable):

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees,

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term (note 5). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value

where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be

received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall
risk management program of the Group focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on financial performance of the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates in mainland China with most of the Group’s
transactions denominated and settled in RMB, except that
certain trade receivables and bank deposits are denominated in
US dollar (“USD”) which are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. The Group has entered into certain forward
foreign exchange contracts to mitigate the foreign exchange risk
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group will
continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve
the Group’s cash value.

If the USD had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the RMB
while all other variables had been held constant, the Group’s net
result for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
approximately RMB4,463,000 better/worse (2019:
RMB4,058,000), for various financial assets denominated in
USD.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interests rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks and term deposits which are
interest bearing, the Group does not have other significant
interest bearing assets and liabilities.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL
and trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts or the
undiscounted nominal amounts, where applicable, of each class
of these financial assets represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the corresponding class of
financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Risk management

To manage the credit risk, bank deposits and financial assets at
FVPL are placed with/issued by highly reputable financial
institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that products are sold
to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group
assesses the creditworthiness of a customer by closely
examining a number of indicators which include its financial and
operational conditions (including whether the customer’s
production facilities are in full operation, the site of the facilities,
scale of operation, and the customer’s amount of investments in
property, plant and equipment), its credit rating and competitive
landscape of the market. Based on such assessment and the
value of the relevant contract, the Group sets a maximum
balance of amount due allowable for a customer. The finance
department of the Group monitors the past due trade
receivables and directs the sales personnel to follow up the
collection of the trade receivables. The sales department of the
Group also sets up a credit profile for each customer. Records
relating to the transactions with the customer are updated
monthly to monitor the amount of sales, payment, accumulated
amount outstanding, amount past due and unpaid, and
accumulated bad debts made as at the end of the month. The
finance department of the Group monitors and updates the
customer’s trade receivables position from time to time, keeps
track of the movement of the trade receivables, and ensures that
the outstanding amounts due do not exceed the maximum
balance allowable for a customer. Specific review on the
recoverability of past due trade receivables is performed on a
regular basis and detailed disclosure of allowance for impairment
of trade receivables is set out in note 19. Normally the Group
does not require collateral from trade debtors.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience and available forward-looking
information.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating,
o external credit rating,

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligations,

° actual or expected significant changes in the financial
situation of individual property owner or the debtor, and

° significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtor, including changes in the payment
status of debtor and individual property owner.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

The trade and other receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. While cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, time deposits are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial since those cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, time deposits are subject to reputable banks with good
credit rating and low risk of default. The expected credit losses
of bank acceptance notes and interest receivables are assessed
to be low and no loss allowance provision is made as banks
have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. The expected credit losses
also incorporate forward looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the trade
receivables. The Group has identifies GDP and change in total
population in China to prior year as the most relevant factors for
forward looking adjustments.

To measure the expected credit losses, customers of the Group
were grouped into three categories based on credit risk
characteristics:

1) Normal customers for sales of goods

The loss allowance provision of trade receivables (excluding
bank acceptance notes) for sales of goods as at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019 was determined as follows:

1L 2FBE  3FLLE
PRME  EoE  E3FE  E4af

More than More than More than

4L #st

Less than 1 year to 2 years to 3 years to More than
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
EHERRIE (FaE Trade receivables (excluding
RITRRER) bank acceptance notes)
#:2020512A31H As at 31 December 2020
BEIB AR Expected loss rate 41% 9.7% 21.2% 29.2% 100.0%
RmE AR Gross carrying amount 82,698 35,792 15,746 2,766 24 137,026
BREREE Loss allowance provision (3,427 (3,464) (3,338) (807) (24) (11,060)
—E_EFERSE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
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4 E @t

Less than 1 year to 2 years to 3 years to More than
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
2019128318 As at 31 December 2019
TBEIBAE Expected loss rate 0.8% 10.0% 30.0% 50% 100%
REEEE Gross carrying amount 111,621 28,224 5,047 12,316 131 157,339
8RR A Loss allowance provision (853) (2,822) (1,514) (6,158) (131) (11,478)
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2)  Customers subject to individual assessment

For individual trade receivables which were determined that there
was objective evidence that an impairment had been incurred,
the expected credit losses were separately reviewed for
impairment and fully impaired. The Group considered that there
was evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators
were present:

° significant financial difficulties of the debtor,

probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and

° in a lawsuit with the debtor.

Gross carrying amount and loss allowance provision of trade
receivables for sales of goods subject to individual assessment
are RMB38,092,000 and RMB38,092,000 as at 31 December
2020, respectively (2019: RMB38,960,000 and RMB38,960,000).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

3) Customers for agent business

For individual trade receivables newly occurred this year with
different types of business nature and the historical loss rate was
not assessable, the expected credit losses were separately
reviewed for impairment.

The Group assessed the credit rating of the customer, and also
incorporate forward looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the trade
receivables. The Group has identifies GDP and change in total
population in China to prior year as the most relevant factors for
forward looking adjustments. The expected credit losses for the
trade receivable from the agent business customer is 1.05%.

Gross carrying amount and loss allowance provision of trade
receivables for agent business income are RMB28,063,000 and
RMB294,000 as at 31 December 2020, respectively. There were
no trade receivables for agent business income as at
31 December 2019.

Other receivables

The Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for
other receivables under the 12 months expected losses method
or lifetime expected losses method, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Management considered other receivables from third
parties to be low credit risk as they have a low risk of default
and a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

To measure the expected credit losses of other receivables,
other receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised
were written off against the provision when there was no
expectation of recovering additional cash.
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(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 WMBEEEE® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 MBEKRER® 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) f1SHEEE &) (b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)  FEXIEIR TR R (i) Loss allowance provision reconciliation

M2020F12A31H » ESZEWZIE (B
B UG BR 3k N 7 FE R R R R ) I B At R
EHMEXGBEBRELREERENTYIEX

As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance provision for trade
receivables (including accounts receivable and commercial
acceptance notes) and other receivables reconciles to the

IR ERNT : opening loss allowance for that provision as follows:
ESrEWMIE HbEIWKRIE st
Trade Other
receivables receivables Total
R2020F1 A1 BHHEH) Opening loss allowance as at
BRER 1 January 2020 50,438 473 50,911
RERERE W RERD Increase in loss allowance
BRI recognised in consolidated
income statement for the year 8,510 120 8,630
1 OB & 1K Reversal of allowance for
impairment (9,502) — (9,502)
R2020F12 A31HHY Closing loss allowance as at
FREXREE 31 December 2020 49,446 593 50,039
7K2019F1 A1 B R E 7] Opening loss allowance as at
BREE 1 January 2019 61,746 444 62,190
RERERE R RERD (Decrease)/increase in loss
BREE CRd), 180 allowance recognised in
consolidated income statement
for the year (10,525) 29 (10,496)
£ [OlRE Reversal of allowance for
impairment (783) — (783)
R2019%F 12 A31HAE KR  Closing loss allowance as at
BREE 31 December 2019 50,438 473 50,911

EBHEBRNENBROBRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
business, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the consolidated balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

LA
Less than
1 year
#2020%¥12A31H At 31 December 2020
B 5 Kk E b AT FRIE (HEEG) Trade and other payables (note (i) 70,215
st Total 70,215
2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019
B 5 R E A ERFKIE (HEE))) Trade and other payables (note (i) 67,501
st Total 67,501

() TEEEMEMNTE-  EMNEER
NEEREMEEK -

() Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable
and provision for quality warranty expenses.
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3 UHMBRKRERE®@

3.2 BEXEHE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt calculated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and
restricted bank deposits. Total capital is calculated as “total
equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net
debts. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no external
borrowings.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured by
different valuation methods. The inputs to valuation methods are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy, as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level

2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESETH  BRIFMEEBEUARRE FTIIR) (Alamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value
based on level 3 valuation method. There were no transfers
between different levels during the year.

Other than the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s other financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, restricted cash, time deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) and short-term liabilities (including trade and other
payables) approximate their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(@) Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of income tax assets and
taxation in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

The loss allowance for trade receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 were disclosed in note 19.

(c) Allowance for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories at each
balance sheet date to determine whether the inventories are
carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group
estimates the net realisable value of each inventory, based on its
related selling price less additional cost to sale and historical
experience on similar inventories. Any change in the
assumptions used in making the estimates would increase or
decrease the amount of allowance of inventories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5 WA 5 REVENUE

FELEARECHERARAINES The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) has been identified
T ERERRER A EEXEBRE— as the board of directors of the Company. The CODM regards

WEE D - WIRE BT BRE - the Group’s business as a single operating segment and reviews

the financial statements accordingly.

AEBFERELEERHEE—ZIARE The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of a
EIMG R EHREANEE - HE20204F range of equipment for manufacturing steel wire products and
&2019F12AB1BLFEREHEE M leasing. Revenue from sales of goods and rental income for the

R A A R e W AT ¢ years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
HER Production lines
— BEFRMGEER — Brass electroplating wire production
lines 44,111
— HMWAEER — Other production lines 385
ik Standalone machines 68,507
HEELE T HEREMH  Other mould repairing equipment,
component parts and accessories 18,548
HelhA Rental income 2,973
RIEBEBWA Agent business income 233
134,757
O Timing of revenue recognition
— R—EBREA — Over time 2,973
— RE-FEHEE — At a point in time 131,784
134,757
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(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5 HKA® 5 REVENUE (Continued)
H E20204F N&2019F12A31B IEF € - For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
IWABRERMIBER AT ¢ geographical information on the total revenue is as follows:
HZ12A318LLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
WA Revenue
— PERRE — Mainland China 127,975
— Efh — Others 6,782
134,757

REBEWNRARBUTIHNBES  ZER The Group’s revenues were derived from the following external
PEBEERAEEKRA10%IA L customers that individually contributed more than 10% of the
Group’s revenues:

BE12AS1HLEE
Year ended 31 December

20194

2019

~A]A Company A 101,929

NI Company B A3 FAN/AT

~a]C Company C A3 FAN/AT
1. AR FE YA A AN SR B AR A 10% 5K BA | o 1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the Group’s total

revenue.
EERNEREROBERLF
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5 HKA® 5 REVENUE (Continued)

(a) AHAERE (a) Contract liabilities

() ATEBECEERATINEEEFELMNE (i) The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
f& : contracts with customers:

®12A31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019
ARBFT
RMB’000
EHEE Contract liabilities
— REAEELEGNTEIFK  — Advance payments from sales of
production lines 23,166
— REBEEEMMNTENTR — Advance payments from sales of
standalone machines 15,902
— REHEEMBERE — Advance payments from sales of
T EM R BE TR R other mould repairing
equipment, component parts
and accessories 1,622
— REBELEDEN — Advance payments from properties
TR held for sale 1,067
41,757
(i) BHEEHEXEE) (i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities

AEENEHNEEFTEREEFPMHEESE Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance

EFERERMNTEN R H8L2019F 124 payments from customers in respect of sales of production lines

318 - R2020F12A31AME N B EL and standalone machines. There was no significant change in

EEMEREE o contract liabilities at 31 December 2020 as compared to
31 December 2019.
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5 W@ 5 REVENUE (Continued)
(a &HERW®W (a) Contract liabilities (Continued)
(iii) EAE 48 EHHEIH 2 EZA (iii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
TRINTRR AR S HA R R R YA AR The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
ELABEHRBHNSRE - in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities.
HZ12A31BLFE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
AREBTT
RMB’000
AAFVELNABERNERER Revenue recognised that was included in
WA the balance of contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year
— REAEEEESNTBNMNIK  — Advance payments from sales of
production lines 18,233
— REBHEE#NTENR — Advance payments from sales of
standalone machines 7,290
— RBHEEHEMBEERE — Advance payments from sales of
T R BRI TR other mould repairing
equipment, component parts
and accessories 8,435
33,958
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(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

6 FEHISHAX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
HEZ12A31BLFE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
BRmAkERMNTEEES Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress (22,237)
i A R A4 4 Raw materials used 109,919
EERAAZ (M:E9) Employee benefit expenses (note 9) 18,905
18 K 5 Depreciation and amortisation
— T ARE (MIEE13) — Land use rights (note 13) 615
o/ E RS — Property, plant and equipment
(FfFzE14) (note 14) 6,770
— REWXE (M3E15) — Investment properties (note 15) 1,532
— EREEE (MiE16) — Intangible assets (note 16) 23
INEREKE Outsourced installation fee 3,343
H a2 b Other tax charges 3,285
BEXEH Professional fees 3,231
Z BRI & Auditor’s remuneration
— BT R® — Audit services 1,491
EBHEE Entertainment expenses 2,058
mNER Office expenses 1,527
ERMAX Travelling expenses 1,453
BIELEMERBERBER Allowance for impairment of properties
held for sale 8,433
JE YR B R (B 1 1 B RE Net reversal of allowance for impairment
of receivables (10,496)
FERE B Allowance for impairment of inventories 1,770
HhmZ Other expenses 2,781
MEERX HERXR Total cost of sales, selling expenses
THBE X and administrative expenses 134,403
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(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

7 HiA 7 OTHER INCOME
HBE12A31HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
BT 8h (Bt 5E(a) Government subsidies (note (a)) 576
BEF RN (D) Value-added tax (“VAT”) refunds
(note (b)) 669
1,245
B 5 - Notes:

() BUTHRBEBEREASENERBIRATEIE (@)
I FEEL ©

(o) RBHEBEFELIE 2EHBARESEREE (b)
REARAR (8RB HEBTHRERGE
BERER2011E12 AE20164 10 A IR = AL (E
FBUER o R201743 A » R EFEER 201743
AZE202263 AN E A THEEHERE
BIERR

Government subsidies mainly represented subsidies for the Group’s development
and for talent training programmes.

According to the relevant tax regulations, the sale of self-developed software
products of a wholly owned subsidiary, Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Haisheng Software”), was entitled to VAT refunds from December
2011 until October 2016. In March 2017, Haisheng Software was approved to
be entitled to VAT refunds for the sales of self-developed software products
from March 2017 to March 2022.

8 Hib(kiE) W — B8 8 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET
HE12A1HILEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
PTESM T EMREEQAFE Unrealised fair value gain on derivative
Wz (FH5E(a)) financial instruments (Note(a)) —
BATFEFABRENESHMEER Fair value gain on financial assets at
A EREE FVPL 3,654
&5 (B18), W= — F5 Foreign exchange (losses)/gains — net 1,613
HEME BEMRENWZ Gains on disposal of property, plant
and equipment =
HERFELEMHELN Gains/(losses) on disposal of properties
Wi (EE) held for sale (320)
HAh Others 309
5,256
AR FIE R AT
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(a) WEETERN2020%F12 A31 BE T REITEBRIN
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BEAINEAHNONEREAETEH2,773,000F 7T
HHE R # AR #18,094,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

8 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET (Continued)

Note:

(@) The gain was primary attributable to the fair value change of certain outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December 2020. The notional
principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at
31 December 2020 were USD 2,773,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB18,094,000.

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE12A31BLFEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
ITE - HaRBBEL Wages, salaries and discretionary
bonuses 13,729
Hrt 2 RERA - (EF4EF K& Other social security costs, housing
HiEERT benefits and other employee benefits 3,127
BREKRA — REMMRETEI  Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 2,049
18,905

(@) EEmAEHAL
FAAESBE LIRS HTATBREMRS
(20195 : MAB)EE - BENME AT
S TRADTAREE - FARMNESHR=F
(20195 : =&) ATHIBIES T :

(@) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2019: two) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in note 35. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2019: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:

HE12A31BLLFEE
Year ended 31 December

20194

2019

TE - %o kel Wages, salaries and bonuses 942

HEibg BEF Other employee benefits 106
BIRESKA — FEMERETEI  Pension costs — defined contribution

plans 107

1,188
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9 REEEMHEZ @
(@) EEBEFAL @

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

BT T LA TSR A A The number of individuals whose emoluments fell within the
following band:
HE12A1BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
e &R GET) Emolument band (in HK$)
£ %1,000,000/8 7T (FBER Nil — HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to
Tz AR#841,6007T) nil — RMB841,600) 3
10 BAFBUEA 10 FINANCE INCOME
HE12A31BILEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
|ITH B WA Bank interest income 4,140
PN PN £ Amortisation of unearned financial
income 64
B RS U Finance income 4,204
SRR HER N
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

HE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20205 20194
2020 2019
EHFEHR — PREMEMEH Current income tax — PRC corporate
income tax 307 813
EIEFTS R (M FE20) Deferred income tax (note 20) 148 2,167
FRefiEX Income tax expense 455 2,980

B NPt R B XSRS AR E
EABMEAM RDEERBAEN ©

PEEEMEH
RS B 5t H 70 BB S B B 8 ) FE AR B UL
AR XS -

BEPBRGEMSHEHECEMER
ED) CARRNMBEBRCEMSBHRERA
25% ° RIBEF I EME T ANEBEER -
RARIFEBTEMEEER  URHERE
202012 A31H It FE KA 15% (2019
& 15%) BE RO EFRBHIEK -

B £2020F &2019F 12 A31B L F & -
ARARMEED RRAFE/NMIEEER -
4> F21,000,0007T & FE SR B FE A 5% B9
KRR ZE TS E - 1,000,000 &
3,000,000 7T #Y F& 53R F A1) BI B A 10% By A%
FARMEEEHE -

H E2020F12 A3 B ILFE » &#15)8K
SRR AR AR (EREMLE]) FE /M
EER (20194 : 25%) o

TTERER NIERBRITER AR HEE2020
F12A318 It FE K HA25% (20194 -
25%) KR TSR R o

Except for the PRC corporate income tax described below, the
Group is not subject to income tax of other jurisdictions.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within the
Group established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”), the Company’s applicable CIT rate is 25%. Under the
relevant regulations of the New CIT Law, the Company was
qualified as High/New Tech Enterprise, and applied a reduced
CIT rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
15%).

Yixing branch of the Company was qualified as the Small and
Micro Enterprise, the taxable profit less than 1 million applied a
reduced CIT rate of 5%, the taxable profit between 1 million and
3 million applied a reduced CIT rate of 10% for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology Co., Ltd. (“Haisheng
Software”) was qualified as the Small and Micro Enterprise for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25%).

Jiangsu Sunlit Equipment Technology Company Limited applied
a CIT rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: 25%).
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11 PRSI @) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
‘Fﬁ#Fﬁ%ﬁ(f’E) PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)

RERE WK A E B TS5 b SR The difference between the actual income tax charge in the
RIAEEAEEMHEMEEENSEZ consolidated income statement and the amount which would
FRER - AJHERET result from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before tax can

be reconciled as follows:

HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
B& Fir 1% $¢ 5 71 8 Profit before income tax 11,059
BETEM 2% T EMTIE Taxation calculated at the statutory tax
rate of 25% 2,765
UTREBENFE Effects of:
AEBARMBARTE@A Effects of different tax rates applicable
MENTE to different subsidiaries of the Group 679
ot 2% F 2 B BB AN RE R Extra deduction allowance for research
and development expenses (502)
HABETEMRBELEMSH  Utlisation of tax losses for which no
BEMNNIAEE deferred income tax asset was
recognised previously (286)
B F W EERIRLETSE  Utilisation of temporary difference for
EENEREZR which no deferred income tax asset
was recognised previously 3)
A AT IS R 0 R RO B S Expenses not deductible for income tax
purposes 327
FRrsBifEX Income tax expense 2,980
4 4E R R AT

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

ERERBANOFEFERBEARAIRE The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
FE(G AR A A B AR INfE 3988 - attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares during the year.

HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
PiNNET = 3y e (| D Profit attributable to equity shareholders
(AR®FT) of the Company (RMB’000) 8,079
B BT ERAR A hnE T 5 8 Weighted average number of ordinary
(1) shares in issue (thousand) 128,000
ERERREERET Basic and diluted earnings per share
(BRAR®TT) (RMB/share) 0.06

R AR A AR 20204 k2019612 A31H As the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
WEREREERITEMNEE L BR 8 E shares outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, diluted

BEERNENTFREREF -

earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share.

13 HE 13 LEASES
HZ12A31BLFE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
EREESE Right-of-use assets
M1 A1 B FE V&R Opening balance at 1 January 23,659
BEBRENEYE Transfer to investment properties =
BIHER Amortisation charge (615)
12831 B EREER Closing balance at 31 December 23,044
®12A318 As at 31 December
DN Cost 28,760
Rt Accumulated amortisation (5,716)
BRTEFHE Net book amount 23,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

13 #HE @)

(a) AEEBEMFEFREEERTHES
HEHNI R BIRRE - WARIE AHAS0F
MEERE -

(b) A+ ih{E AEAEED T ATTE
X RHERAE  EDFI/ARE
204,0007T & A K #339,0007T °

(c) xREMHEEEE
AEBEIBETYE HEAN KLY

13 LEASES (Continued)

(a) All the right-of-use assets are land use rights of the Group
which are located in Mainland China and are held on
leases for 50 years.

(b) Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights were included
in the administrative expenses and cost of sales in the
amount of RMB204,000 and RMB339,000, respectively.

(c) The Group’s leasing activities
The Group leases out properties. Rental contracts are typically

SR—EF o

14 Y% - BERRHE

made for periods of more than one year.

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BHER BAZ
kS e RE  E¥RfE R ERKE ERIR @t
Computer
and
electronic Office Interior Construction

Buildings Machinery  Vehicles equipment equipment decoration in progress Total
201951818 At 1 January 2019
KA Cost 109,018 8,742 6,577 4,781 1,639 1,256 129 132,142
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (19,650) (4,527) (4,700) (4,401) (1,220) (438) - (34,936)
REFE Net book amount 89,368 4,215 1,877 380 419 818 129 97,206
HE2019512A81HLEE  Year ended 31 December 2019
FIRAFE Opening net book amount 89,368 4,215 1,877 380 419 818 129 97,206
NE Additions = 274 448 298 155 = 6,250 7,425
=t Transfers 1,337 - - - - - (1,337) -
HE Disposals - - - ) 17 - - (23)
FEZH Depreciation charge (5,206) (643) (461) (229) (139) (98) - (6,770)
FREHFE Closing net book amount 85,499 3,846 1,864 443 424 720 5,042 97,838
1120195128318 At 31 December 2019
A Cost 110,355 9,016 7,025 5,073 1,777 1,255 5042 139,543
2EE Accumulated depreciation (24,856) (5,170) (5,161) (4,630) (1,359) (535) - (41,705)
BREHE Net book amount 85,499 3,846 1,864 443 424 720 5,042 97,838
HFE2020F12A31BIEEE  Year ended 31 December 2020
FOREFE Opening net book amount
NE Additions
EEE: Transfers
BREKENE Transfers to investment properties
HE Disposals
EL Depreciation charge
FREBFH Closing net book amount
12020128318 At 31 December 2020
A Cost
25E Accumulated depreciation
BREHE Net book amount
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RIESBEH  TRMEEHBAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in

the consolidated income statement:

B=E12A31HILLEE

Year ended 31 December

20194
2019
SHE R A Cost of sales 2,969
THRAX Administrative expenses 3,769
HERMX Selling expenses 32
6,770
15 &M 15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
BEE At cost
M1 A1BFEI&E#H Opening balance at 1 January 20,287
EE A ARANYE « Transfer from land use right and
R 5= K 5% 45 (T 3£ (b)) property, plant and equipment
(note (b)) —
ANE (KEE(e) Addition (note(c)) 3,393
MEREHETH Depreciation and amortisation charge (1,532)
P12A31 B ERE R Closing balance at 31 December 22,148
®12A318 At 31 December
DN Cost 36,925
2T E R # Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation (14,777)
RmEiFaE Net book amount 22,148
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIFZHEHA - TRIMEBEAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 #REYME ® 15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

@ AEEHREWEMCRFE - FHK (a) The Group’s investment properties are located in the PRC
KRIRBIEHE - and measured using the cost model.

(o) 2020 @ AEEME=F BB (b) In 2020, the Group leased out part of self-owned land use
BEETHERAEEYSE- right and properties to third parties.

() M2019%F » AEEEE —HURFE () In 2019, the Group purchased one property located in
IWREREMNYE - WEREES Dongying City, Shandong Province, the PRC. The
BEHEARERFRAER (FRBE) consideration for the property shall be paid by way of
MERERO AR ARG R A EED setting off the same outstanding amount owed to the
HRREESEN AN - 2 Group by Sunnywell (China) New Material Technology Co.,
FERBMRIAMES K - WIEHASE Ltd., which is a customer of the Group. The property is
B - held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the

Group.

d) AEBREVENATFERBILESHE (d) The fair value of Group’s investment properties are
BERGHEMITIGTLERREE determined by an independent professional qualified valuer,
FEERARIRFEETE - RETRE Jiangsu Zhongtian Assets Appraisal Office Co., Ltd, on an
MENRNTFER  GHEMFEARBR annual basis. In determining the fair value of the investment
(B EE) ERMISM A LERMER properties, the valuer uses assumptions and estimates that
SHBRLGE REHEE4ANH reflect, amongst other factors, comparable market
SWAARERIBETR - A - & transactions in an active market, lease income from current
RIS ERIEHWAE NBHBRRK leases and assumptions about lease income from future
HEHRSWARE KEMELTE leases in light of current market conditions, capitalisation
A AER TS EBESHAT - rates, terminal vyield and reversionary income potential.

Valuations were based on income approach and market
approach, the fair value of the investment properties are as
follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20204 20194
2020 2019

REMERNRFE Fair value of the investment properties 70,791 39,856

R ENRATFER  WENERS K& In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

ERRAERRKAR AKBEKREMEN best use of the properties is their current use. The fair value of

164
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EBHEBRNENBROBRAT

the Group’s investment properties was measured on Level 3 fair

value measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RIESBEH  TRMEEHBAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment properties:

HBE12A31BILEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
el A Rental income 2,973
EXHSWANEZZERS Diect operating expenses that generate
rental income (1,532)
1,441
16 HEREE 16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
E ISR 4
Computer
software
HE2019F12A31HILLEE Year ended 31 December 2019
FYRM®FRE Opening net book amount 101
B> H Amortisation charge (23)
FREEFEHE Closing net book amount 78
#20195%F12HA31H At 31 December 2019
X A Cost 841
E 3| Accumulated amortisation (763)
BREFE Net book amount
B Z2020F12A31HILEE Year ended 31 December 2020
FYREFHE Opening net book amount
B Amortisation charge
FRIREFEE Closing net book amount
#2020%E12H31H At 31 December 2020
DN Cost
BT Accumulated amortisation
IR iFEE Net book amount
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16 |EEE @ 16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
BREEMNEHEOREERRERANRITH Amortisation of the intangible assets has been charged to
F 2 HIBR © administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.
17 MIBAT 17 SUBSIDIARIES

AT &52020F12 A1 B KT B A Rl & The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2020:

oo

g

BETRER/ R12R318 REGEEH

ATEH SRR R EERE ZMEX(TR) HENEREE HENERER IEERREERY
Effective
Issued and paid up/  Effective interest interest held as
Place of incorporation registered capital held as at of the date of  Principal activities and
Name of company and kind of legal entity (thousand) 31 December this report  place of operations
2020 2019
2020 2019
IR NERRNRARAR HE - AREEAT AR%5,000 100% 100% 100% HEFEETRAEGRES
Jiangsu Sunlit Equipment Technology Company the PRC, Limited liability company RMBS5,000 Machinery products trading in the PRC
Limited
R hE - FREAEAR AR%1,080 100% 100% 100% EPEETRAREREAENELS
Haisheng Software the PRC, Limited liability company RMB1,080 Software development and software

patent rights trading in the PRC

166 BERNENEBROBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

d)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 HEMEIS ST AR 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
®12A318
As at 31 December
20194
2019
RIS E Financial assets
BREBHERATENSREE Financial assets at amortised cost
5 & H b e R E Trade and other receivables 198,718
RehIBeFHEIAR Cash and cash equivalents 62,478
BRHIE2 Restricted cash 24,290
EHfF Time deposits 125,407
BRAFEFANEEMLFEE Financial assets at FVPL 30,440
BAFEFANEBEENTE Derivative financial instruments at
&RTH FVPL _
fst Total 441,333
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019
=R Financial liabilities
BREBHERATTENESREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B 5 K EMESFIE (K5E@) Trade and other payables (note (a)) 67,501
Mot - Note:
(a) TEEEMEMTE ENEERIREERE (a) Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable and provision for quality
Bﬁfiﬁfﬁ o Warranty expenses.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020

167



168

FEMBWMRMEER)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 B RHEMEKRIE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

®12A31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019
Z YN Trade receivables
JE W BR SR (Bt 5% (a)) Accounts receivable (note (a)) 137,814
B AR FORE K Less: allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable (50,054)
FEWERR — JF58 Accounts receivable — net 87,760
A H BiR (7o) Commercial acceptance notes (note (b)) 58,485
B AEZEBRRERK Less: allowance for impairment of
commercial notes (384)
RITAN & (M5 (b) Bank acceptance notes (note (b)) 20,906
5 EWFTE — F58 Trade receivables — net 166,767
H 1t FEW =R IE Other receivables
H b fE W SR8 Other receivables 31,038
o RERBBEA Less: unearned financial income (476)
R H A G IERE Less: allowance for impairment of other
receivables (473)
HfibpEskIE — F5E Other receivables — net 30,089
FEW 71 2 Interest receivable 1,862
EHEE (Mak(c) Contract assets (note (c)) —
198,718
SEMENED 7 Non-current portion 1,993
Nk k%2 Current portion 196,725
198,718
BEBRNENBRODERAT

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes:

(a)

()

FEMBRRME (R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

For sale of production lines, standalone machines and equipment, apart from a
portion of the contract sum retained by customers to cover the Group’s product
quality warranty, the Group does not grant credit terms to customers in the
sales contract. Included in accounts receivable as at 31 December 2020 are
such retained sums of approximately RMB46,602,000 (2019: RMB44,219,000)
representing 24.5% (2019: 32.1%) of accounts receivable. These are due for
collection upon the expiry of product quality warranty period (which is usually 12
months from the acceptance by the customer of the equipment).

For sale of components parts and accessories, the Group grants 30 to 90 days
credit terms to certain customers in sales contract.

Notes receivable of the Group include bank acceptance notes and commercial
acceptance notes, and are usually settled within six months or twelve months
from the date of issue.

As at 31 December 2020, no notes receivables were pledged as security. As at
31 December 2019, notes receivables of RMB10,000,000 were pledged as

security for the Group’s notes payables.

Contract assets include the transportation expenses of the products.

Aging analysis based on recognition date of the gross accounts
receivable at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows:

®12A31H
As at 31 December

20194
2019

19 ESRHEMEWKRIE @)

B &E

@ HHELEER BERRENES  BRAETEFPRA
EAAEBERLERERISHNIN G LTI -
AEBVWECHEAHARNTSREEES - B
202012 A31H + BUERAR B EZEREHIEL
AR #46,602,0007T (20194 : A R#44,219,000
JC) ¢ {h W BR FXA924.5% (20194F : 32.1%) ° #%
ERBFERERLEREN (—RAFTFBIGE
EReEH12ME A ) [E i 1% B B ER -
REETHHREGMS  AEEEHEEOR
METFTEFERHIOEANEER -

b) AEENERZEOERTALZBEREERR
ZE - B—MRBEFEASRT NEAK+T =
B Rk
MN2020F12A31H » I EE KRR IR EE HEE
R - 12019%F 128318 + AR #10,000,0007T )
EREERD EREANEE BN ZHRAOER -

© AHEEREEREHER-

REEHE BIRERIER A TERER B HM

Rl AT aA N

1FR Within 1 year

1224 1-2 years

2E3F 2-3 years

3FLAE Over 3 years

53,717
28,735

4,895
50,467

137,814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 ES5RHEMEBWRIE @) 19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
REEE H RHMEBGIERRE 258U The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
Y EHEETE are denominated in the following currencies:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019

AR RMB 198,718
ETT UsD —

198,718
FEUAR SR « P SR L BB R H B IR Movements of allowance for impairment of accounts receivable,
HREREZESH T commercial acceptance notes and other receivables are as

follows:
HEZ12A31BLFE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019

PK1RA1BEWM Opening as at 1 January 62,190
BN EER Additional allowance for impairment 6,619
B O ERE Reversal of allowance for impairment (17,115)
31 5 1 BT Lk [B] &9 FE U 5k I8 Receivables written off as uncollectible (783)
M12A31 BMEREER Closing balance at 31 December 50,911

2R ER EBGRIEEE AR REFREE The creation and release of allowance for impaired receivables

ANERE W R R [ 8 YR IR R (B s 5 have been included in “Net reversal of allowance for impairment

BLFEE I (FI5E6) o B HE R A KIE — & of receivables” in the consolidated income statement (note 6).

MR IEHA T RE Y (Bl FE SR & P Al 8 o Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

B M EMEWFIENERRSEEEAYF The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
BEA - approximate their fair values.
RS EBHEENERERARRY LS The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
HERFENEACRE A5ETEESE carrying amounts of each class of receivable mentioned above.
FIERRERER - The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

?@\{“ J}_‘E-}Zl ‘g N N Tl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20 REFMBHEE — FE 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET
BIEFSHREES AT ¢ The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019
BEFRBHEE Deferred income tax assets:
— BREEBE121E A % Uk E — to be recovered after more than
12 months 10,206
— #1218 A ik — to be recovered within 12 months 2,837
13,043
BEFBBHERE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
— B 1218 A Ak E — to be recovered within 12 months (66)
BEFRBHEE — FH Deferred income tax assets — net 12,977
BIEFESREEZENT ¢ The movement on the deferred income tax assets is as follows:

BEREK KBREIE HEBE Hip ast

Allowance
for  Unrealised Tax

impairment profit losses Others Total
20195£1H18 At 1 January 2019 12,790 1,740 428 258 15,216
(B)/ FAREKEE (Charged)/credited to the consolidated

income statement (982) (1,340) (110) 259 (2,173)

2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 11,808 400 318 517 13,043
$202051H18 At 1 January 2020
(8)/ FAREKEE (Charged)/credited to the consolidated

income statement

202012A31H At 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BRIFSAEFHE - BRIMEEFEUAREFTITIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20 EEFBHEE — FH® 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS — NET

(Continued)

EEFSHAaESeEsmT The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities is as

follows:
AFEHI S
Fair value
gains
:2019%1A1H At 1 January 2019 (72)
(3BE)GFTAGREKEE (Charged)/credited to the consolidated income
statement 6
#2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 (66)
$:2020%£1A1H At 1 January 2020 (66)
(H8), FFAZEKER (Charged)/credited to the consolidated income
statement 48
2020%12A318 At 31 December 2020 (18)

M2020F12A31H » KEER AT IKNE
= R4 A ARK73,831,0007T (2019

At 31 December 2020, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB73,831,000 (2019:

& AR¥T74,942,0007T) - REB D FZ
SAEMNEREZEZHARKET1,2350007T
(20194 : AR#72,147,0007T ) FERIE LT
FTBMEE - AR¥99,0007T * AR¥
3,0007T & A R #6,842,0007T K F1 1E &5 18
2 B R20224 « 20244 K 20254 B H o
RN K AT 678 FE SR B FI B A A LA K 88 AT
ENERE=R  WHERFSRTENGR
ZRHARME2596,0007T (20194 : AR
#2,795,0007T) ERIEEFMEHEE -

ﬁ{\\ Dﬁg z S L AL /‘\E
172 EBHEBRNENBROBRAT

RMB74,942,000). A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of approximately RMB71,235,000 (2019:
RMB72,147,000) of such deductible temporary differences. The
tax losses of RMB99,000, RMB3,000 and RMB6,842,000 will
expire in 2022, 2024 and 2025 respectively. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
deductible temporary differences of approximately
RMB2,596,000 (2019: RMB2,795,000) as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

21 B8 21 INVENTORIES
®12A318
As at 31 December

20194
2019
JE M Raw materials 18,840
E& @ Work in progress 32,061
LR o Finished goods 37,610
88,511

B E2020F12A31BILFE - R AR For the year ended 31 December 2020, the cost of inventories
SXWEATHERN I NEEXANORAR recognised as expense and included in “Cost of sales”
¥79,207,0007C (2019F : AR amounted to approximately RMB79,207,000 (2019:
89,452,0007T) * B BIEEFEEREMRIEA RMB89,452,000), which included the allowance for impairment
R#0902,0007T (20194 : FERMEHFHEA of inventories of RMB902,000 (2019: the allowance for

R #1,770,0007T) ° impairment of inventories of RMB1,770,000).
22 [{EHEME 22 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
BE12A31BLFEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
R1B1BEDEER Opening balance at 1 January 69,671
& Disposals (3,984)
MEFREREE(FHK) Reversal of allowance/(allowance) for
impairment (8,433)
P12 31 HIER LR Closing balance at 31 December 57,254
®12A31H At 31 December
AR Cost 68,724
BERBE Allowance for impairment (11,470)
R EER Net book amount 57,254
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 FHIEHEYE®

M2018F 48  RRRIHEBIE=FIUR
BEEHEREERAR(ERDILE
NEBWE Bt ARRREEEMR
5 RIE & A B L R R T 2R e E
#%2695% A EIEE A 166 AFEEENM ([ZF
mE]) BREABARKET74,347,7967T ©
BEFHEARFREEGE  ZEMENRE
FREHELEBBNESERAR (AR
AIREPREANBEB AR ERAARD
EHRMABESHEN TN - ZEWE
RIRK AR 49 8 A R #72,969,0007T ° A& B
BROEZEWE At BEENERA
RIEHEWE -

23 HAFEIAEGMNEMEE

22 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

In April 2018, the Company and an independent third party
Shandong Snton Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (the
“Vendor”) entered into sale and purchase agreements, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to purchase and the Vendor
agreed to sell 166 residential units of Tong Xing Garden, No.
269 Guanxing Road, Kenli District, Dongying City, Shandong
Province, the PRC (the “Properties”) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB74,347,796. The Vendor and the Company
have mutually agreed that the consideration for the Properties
shall be paid by way of setting off the same outstanding amount
owed to the Company by Shandong Snton Steelcord Co., Ltd.,
which is a customer of the Company and a related company of
the Vendor. The cost of the Properties was approximately
RMB72,969,000.The Group’s intention is to sell these Properties
and, accordingly, such rights are recognised as properties held
for sale.

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

®12H31H
As at 31 December
20204 20194
2020 2019
B Em Wealth management products - 30,440

AT EE AR SBA B AT EE
B & 2t o A [ R A (RS HR), M as
AL N ACEE

ﬁ{\\ E-?i z S L AL /‘\E
174 EBHEBRNENBROBRAT

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in “other (losses)/gains — net” in the
consolidated income statement (note 8).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24 TEFRIE 24 PREPAYMENTS
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019
BB E R M E R TE R 2R Prepayments for purchase of raw
materials 2,178
TET I ER R HE A E Prepayments for value added tax and
other taxes 233
TR ESHR Prepayment for PRC corporate income
tax 17
2,428
25 BRERFEFEIEH 25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019
RITEERRS Cash at bank and on hand 62,478
RITIF R Bank deposits 149,697
212,175
R BRBIRE (k@) Less: Restricted cash (note (a)) (24,290)
B EHER (M5 () Less: Time deposits (note (b)) (125,407)
HehIAEFEIAH Cash and cash equivalents 62,478
B 5E - Notes:

@ HRARBHENERGRSEERTRITELRRE (@)
N (1 E29) ERAREFN -

The restricted cash which is denominated in RMB represented cash deposits
pledged to banks as security for notes payable (note 29).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(FrIES AT BRIFMAEBEUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

25 RERAEZFEER @ 25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
B 5E - (48) Notes: (Continued)
(@) (#8) (@) (Continued)
AEENRERASEFEER  THERARE The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and restricted cash are
MR&IR & AT EMEFHE : denominated in the following currencies:
®12A31H

As at 31 December

20194
2019
AR RMB 116,673
B TT HK$ 8
X7 uss$ 95,494
212,175
(b) EHFERNLABA=EAULEBLR—F - £H (b) The initial term of time deposits was over three months and less than 1 year.
TFRMR2020F 12 A31 B MEF BB ER AT The weighted average effective interest rate of time deposits as at
£1.72% (2019F 12831 H : H42.86%) ° 31 December 2020 was 1.72% per annum (31 December 2019: 2.86% per
annum).
26 BARBKGDEE 26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
21T
EEE BEx  RBEE st
Number
of issued Share Share
shares capital premium Total
(A=)
(shares)
20205 % 20194 At 31 December 2020
12A31H and 2019 128,000,000 128,000 311,464 439,464
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27 REBEF

20191818

FRFHE
ERsLT2E S (HiF28(b))
B AR B

2019412 A31H
202091 A1H

F A F

FALZ2ES (KiE28(b)

BIR AR

MR2020F12 A31H

FEMBRRME (R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27 RETAINED EARNINGS

At 1 January 2019 124,431
Profit for the year 8,079
Transfer to safety fund (note 28(b)) (1,179)
Dividend paid (6,400)
At 31 December 2019 124,931

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year

Use of safety fund (note 28(b))
Dividend paid

At 31 December 2020

28 fi#fh 28 RESERVES
BERXNE  EERE  FHHEE st
Capital Statutory Special
reserves reserves reserve Total
CGEIR) (B 5% (o))
(note (a)) (note (b))
®2019%1H1H At 1 January 2019 17,637 38,879 9,191 65,707
ERETEES Transfer to safety fund = = 1,179 1,179
#20195%12H31H At 31 December 2019 17,637 38,879 10,370 66,886
:2020%1A1H At 1 January 2020
PRALZEES Use of safety fund

$:2020%12A31H

At 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RIESBEH  BRIMEEHBAARE T IR

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28 fitifl (=) 28 RESERVES (Continued)

B 5 Notes:

(@) R IR B AR R A 1R ROA AR DA R pA R B B ST 0 B R (a) In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and the Articles
AR([PREEEE ) WAHZEMA - FEE of Association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC Operational
EEBVWABEEEATFEERENFEEMLT (& Entities”), the PRC Operational Entities are required to appropriate 10% of their
PR R ERIE T ) #910% 1 9 Ik (T {a] 45 F1) 37 65 48 annual net profit, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the
EEATREBAES -EATRBABRESHNERE PRC accounting standards, to the statutory surplus reserve fund before
B ETEEMERNS0% - Al ARREE distributing any net profit. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
RELME—SPHER - EZEBBRABLATAR fund reaches 50% of the registered capital of the PRC Operational Entities, any
BHETEFEBER(E)  TAERLATFMER - further transfer is at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus reserve
HERBBEITENEZERBABLE/RTE IR fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if any, and may be capitalised as
& AR25% © registered capital, provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus

reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

(o) BERARZEEEEEERRBR2012FB/MHH (b) Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State of Administration of Work
ETEH BHoEEERAERRANETES Safety in 2012, certain group entities are required to set aside an amount to a
HEALZE2ES ZEESTHRNSHRRE safety fund at certain percentage of revenue. The fund can be used for
Z&2 AR AERRRS IR RELELZZRAX improvement of safety for machinery manufacturing, and are not available for
% SEHXEECHEBSENEZREETN - distribution to shareholders. Upon incurring safety expenditure, an equivalent

amount is transferred from safety fund to retained earnings.

29 BESRHMEMNRIA 29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

»12H31H
As at 31 December
20194
2019

Z S ENFIE (M) Trade payables (note (a)) 20,334

LINESACIE(O)) Notes payable (note (b)) 41,285

HEEHNEERES Quality warranty deposits from suppliers 2,373

FEfHE BREF Employee benefits payable 2,315

H b ST Other taxes payable 2,560

BERFERZES Provision for quality warranty expenses 197

Y - REMEREREFKIE  Payables for property, plant and

equipment 2

Efth Others 3,507

72,573
EERNEREROBERLF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESEER  BRIMAHBEUARE T ILIIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20 B REMEMRRIE @

CEE

@ EZENKRENRKRINAT

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

1FR Within 1 year
E=24E 1-2 years
2E3F 2-3 years
3FEME Over 3 years

b) ENEBRARRITERRSTRERER (MF25) -

30 I8

ANAFWESIKE Z=2019F12 8318 L&
FENEMBKE - 2018FERBAREEIA
R #0.057T (I8 B # 58 A R %6,400,000
JL) ER2019F BEURL ©

RAREEEREZEATIRE £2020F12A4
STHLEFENREBREFRARE0.05T
(BB 458 AR#¥6,400,0007T) @ HERERXR
MABRABEEBE BKREESFBRER
2021 F6 A18HRITHRERF ARG it
) o

Notes:
(@) The aging analysis of the trade payables is as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December

20194
2019
20,215
104
15
20,334
(b) The notes payable is secured by pledge of cash deposits to banks (note 25).

30 DIVIDENDS

The Company did not declare any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019. The 2018 final dividend of RMBO0.05 per
share, amounted to a total dividend of RMB6,400,000, was fully
paid in 2019.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 of RMB0.05 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
RMB6,400,000, has been proposed by the Board of Directors of
the Company but not recognised as a liability at year end. The
proposed dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 18 June 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

31 ZEEMBRE 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
@ BRIAEHAINEBRSERSRESNY (@  Reconciliations of profit before income tax to cash generated
RN : from operations were as follow:
BE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194
2019
BFrE P e FH Profit before income tax 11,059
MATHBEHE Adjustments for:
— e R (FIFE18 - — Depreciation and amortisation
14~ 15%16) (notes 13, 14, 15 and 16) 8,940
— FEUGRIBREBEEE — Net reversal of allowance for
FEE (MFFE19) impairment of receivables
(note 19) (10,496)
— GEREHBE(HE6) — Allowance for impairment of
inventories (note 6) 1,770
— FELEMEREHRE — Allowance for impairment of
(FfFzE22) properties held for sale (note 22) 8,433
— RELMBWAZH — Amortisation of unearned financial
(MF3E10) income (note 10) (64)
— HEYWE  WEMEKHEN  — Gains on disposal of property,
Wz (B15E8) plant and equipment (note 8) —
— BRATEF AERD — Fair value gain on financial assets
TREEMNATERKS at fair value through profit or
(HE8) loss (note 8) (3,654)
— EHEE/ (W) (ME8) — Foreign exchange losses/(gains)
(note 8) (1,613)
— AR I AENAFEE — Fair value gain on derivative
Wz (FF5E8) financial instruments (note 8) —
LES2BHAMNELFB:  Operating profit before changes in
working capital: 14,375
BESsEE Changes in working capital
- FE — Inventories (24,763)
— BIEHEWE — Properties held for sale 3,984
— BRIE — Prepayments (1,664)
— B RHMEWHKIE — Trade and other receivables (76,899)
— ARFIRE — Restricted cash (13,365)
— B RHEMERNKIE — Trade and other payables 25,322
— BR8E — Contract liabilities 3,831
E2EMARS Cash used in operations (69,179)
180 EERNEREROBERLF
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31 ZBEMRBHRE®
b) MEFEEREREBRT  HEWE K
BENERENFESRESE

FEMBRRME (R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BEBEEH - BRIFMEBREAARE TR

31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:

HZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December

20194

2019
HEWE  BER&REN Proceeds from disposal of the property,

Fr{S 308 (MizE8 &k 14) plant and equipment (notes 8 and 14) 23
32 kiE 32 COMMITMENTS

BRI Capital commitments

BERINERREZE M B REBENE AR
I

Capital expenditures contracted and not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

WE - BB MRE

Property, plant and equipment

®12A318
As at 31 December
20194
2019
BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(FrIES AT BRIFMAEBEUARE T LYIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

33 FEEFRXS

REERRERILCE  RERLE KK
E LT REES - RER20205612 A 31
HHER#HAE AR A]60.34%H FZIAE -

R B E20204F k20195124318 IEF
B NEBEEE Y \EETENEAR

]

() XEEEEWMHE
TEEEERRESF ESEhafER
[E - & 220204 N2019F12 A31H I F
ENEFETEEMERKIINAT

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang Degang,
Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua, who collectively
held 60.34% direct equity interest in the Company as at
31 December 2020.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
significant transaction has been carried out between the Group
and related parties.

(a) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors, supervisors and senior
management The key management compensation for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out as below:

HBZE12A318LLEE
Year ended 31 December

20194
2019

TEEBREME Key management compensation
— IT& HaekfEa — Wages, salaries and bonuses 2,574
— B RRKRE — Welfare and pension 493
3,067

/4]‘5\{“ ‘;:5_}21 ZE R NF
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34 FATMAEBRRRABEE

FEMBRRME (R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

EATNEEBRBR Balance sheet of the Company
B
Note

BE ASSETS

FREBEE Non-current assets

FREEE Right-of-use assets

M- BER® Property, plant and equipment

wEME Investment properties

ERAE Intangible assets

REE R RRRE Investments in subsidiaries

B 5 R E b fE Y 5RI8 Trade and other receivables

BEMSHEE — FE

RENEE

&

BIEHEWE

Bt RIA

B 5 R H bR FRE
PTESBIA

BAFEFARSNEREE

BRHIH &
RekREFEEEB

HnEE

M
E&N
Bt (B
fFé 5
RE &AM

Mg

B

mEER

B 5 N ELAh e FR
BMAaE

Hafl

BESRAE

Deferred income tax assets — net

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Prepayments

Trade and other receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Restricted cash

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Retained earnings (P 5% (a)
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

(Fff 5% () (Note (a))
) (Note (a))

®12A31H

As at 31 December

—E-BEERE
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20194
2019

27,774
86,767
22,148
78
24,719
1,994
7,048

170,528

90,301
57,254
2,177

182,751

30,440
21,890

125,407

43,478

553,698

724,226

128,000
311,464

84,274
78,134

601,872

87,074
35,280

122,354
122,354

724,226
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

34 AKATIMBSEEBERRHEEH 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
(#8) OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Mt (a) EAT R HEEEE Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

HEXAE  EEME  BHHE  REeE KRERA

Capital Statutory Special Total Retained

reserves reserves reserve reserve  earnings
#2019E1A18 At 1 January 2019 38,065 35,839 9,191 83,095 89,969
FREE Loss for the year — — — — (4,256)
EREELZ2HES Transfer to safety fund — — 1,179 1,179 (1,179)
BRI S Dividend paid — — — — (6,400)
#2019 12H31H At 31 December 2019 38,065 35,839 10,370 84,274 78,134
#202051A18 At 1 January 2020
FRERE Loss for the year
PRREES Use of safety fund
#2020512H31H At 31 December 2020
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35 EERESEFRER

(a) EEREEMNINE
REEREEHZE2020E12A31H IFF

ERFMENmT

:$4 Name

BTES Executive Directors

SRAEH Zhang Degang

SRR (FTEE() Zhang Degjiang (note (i)

FHITES Non-executive Directors

=1 Gao Feng

RERE Zhang Jinghua

BAKRTES Independent Non-executive
Directors

2z Liu Chaojian

il &5 B Ho Yuk Ming Hugo

mET Gao Fu Ping

BE Supervisors

HAkEE Yang Jinghua

2 Wei Yi

i Peng Jiashan

FEMBWMRME(ER)

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

—E-BEERE
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIESAFEH - TRAIMABEEUARE FLAR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35 EERESEARER @

(a) EEREENNE (B
REENEEEE2019F12A31H |4
ERHMEMT

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

RAREHKAR
- RE REE R
we e BB IEAL ARG E EWEF st
Pension
costs —

defined Allowances
Discretionary ~ contribution  and benefits

e Name Fees Salaries bonus plans in kind Total
BITES Executive Directors
SRAEH Zhang Degang - 460 36 59 24 579
sRiE (P EE()) Zhang Degjiang (note (i) - 460 36 59 24 579
FPITES Non-executive Directors
=1 Gao Feng — - _ _ _ _
REREE Zhang Jinghua = = = = = =
BIEHITES Independent Non-executive

Directors
2|5 Liu Chaojian 100 = = = = 100
il & B Ho Yuk Ming Hugo 100 — — — — 100
=T Gao Fu Ping 100 - - - - 100
EE Supervisors
R Yang Jinghua - 111 19 32 12 174
BE Wei Vi = = = = = =
Z Peng Jiashan — — — = = =

300 1,031 91 150 60 1,632

Bt 5 - Notes:

0} ARBHBERITRARBTHRESHORBEEE

REZE2020F12A31BILFE  HESE
FWMAEE B S ERMARSE B AR
RORSIIERBEBEE MEESHE
K EEREEMME (2019F : ) o

4R R ) E R IR AT
186 HBERIENERODERLDH

(i) The chief executive of the Company is Mr. Zhang Deqgiang, who is also a director.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no directors received
emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No
directors waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments (2019:
Nil).

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED



35 EEREEEMRER®

(b) EFERKEF
WEE R FE RS UER S W ERE R K
BH (20194 : f&) o

(c) EEHEERN
e S E R F R B UER K U R 1n] B B
BH (20194 : #&) o

(d HMESESRBEAE=FRHEBHNKE

RE E2020F12A31B IEFE - KEE
WERESEESREATME=ZFZAR
B (20194 : &) -

() MES -  XRFESEHBEAEE
RZEESHHREEREAZEEAN
BEX EERRAMXSIHEH

REE2020F12A31H L FE &N
EE IRSETEHNINEAERREZE
ETNHEERAITANER £BX
REMR P L HE (20194F « £&) -

( EERXS ZHIASHPHEX
=

RERKFATMER - BEANRR]PET

VoEREERNETHEBEEAEDZ (THRE

BRyEE) BEARAEBEABNEAR

5 RFEREHTFEQOI9F : &) -

FEUMBRRME &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BRIFSAEFH  BRIMEEFEUAREFTITIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not

pay consideration to any third parties for making available

directors’ services (2019: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no loans,

quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the

directors, or controlled body corporates and connected entities
of such directors (2019: Nil).

(ff Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in

relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was

a party and in which a director of the Company had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year (2019: Nil).
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Five-Year Financial Summary

(BIERAZTH > BRIFABEEENUARETTIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

#HE12A31BLEE

Year ended 31 December
20194 20184 20174 20164
2019 2018 2017 2016
ARBTFIT AR¥ETT ARBFT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue 134,757 176,857 160,584 112,284
wE (B8, /7R Operating (loss)/profit 6,855 54,128 38,516 14,283
FrisRiF (EE) Income tax expense/(credit) 2,980 10,593 7,200 (12,748)
FRFIE Profit for the year 8,079 48,054 33,455 28,608

FRARRBREEM Earnings per share attributable
FRAF to shareholders of the
(AR AR®E TSR Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
— EXREE — Basic and diluted 0.06 0.38 0.26 0.22
EME Gross profit margin 22.69% 38.67% 34.20% 29.33%
e (B8R, FRE Operating (loss)/profit margin 5.09% 30.61% 23.98% 12.72%
AR = Net profit margin 6.00% 27.17% 20.83% 25.48%
®12A31H
As at 31 December

20194 20184 20174 20164
2019 2018 2017 2016
ARBTT AREBTRT ARETRT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current assets 158,078 157,762 165,334 195,576
BB E Current assets 587,533 558,802 575,013 440,435
nRBEE Current liabilities 114,330 86,962 150,216 73,115
B EEFE Net current assets 473,203 471,840 424,797 367,320
BEERREEE Total assets less current liabilities 631,281 629,602 590,131 563,076
BEFE Net assets 631,281 629,602 590,131 563,076
(&N Capital 128,000 128,000 128,000 128,000
f#f Reserves 66,886 65,707 57,339 56,245
B Total equity 631,281 629,602 590,131 563,076
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